

















Kingsrose Mining Limited Annual Report
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont’d)
Table 2. Mineral Resource estimate for the Sand Queen Mine, Comet Vale Project

(Cut off grade 5 g/t Au. Data previously released by Reed Resources Ltd)

Res_o_urc_e Volume Tonnes Grade Au
classification (bcm) (Au glt) (Ounces)
Indicated 122,000 329,000 9.2 97,100
Inferred 123,000 332,000 8.0 85,500
Total 245,000 661,000 8.6 182,600

Figure 4. Comet Vale Project, Sand Queen Mine long section.

The Mineral Resource statement in Table 1 has been reviewed by Mrs. Christine Standing of Snowden Mining Industry Consultants.
Mrs Standing is a member of The Australasian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy and has sufficient experience that is relevant to
the style of mineralisation and type of deposit under consideration to qualify as a Competent Person as defined in the 2004 edition
of the Australasian Code for Reporting of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves. Mrs. Standing consents to the
inclusion in this report of the matters based on the information in the form and context in which is appears.

The information in this report that relates to exploration results, mineral resources and ore reserves is based on information
compiled by Dr. Michael Andrews B.Sc. (Hons) Ph.D., who is a Fellow of the Australasian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy, and a
Director of Kingsrose Mining Limited. Dr. Andrews has sufficient experience which is relevant to the styles of mineralisation and
types of deposits and to the activity he is undertaking to qualify as a Competent Person as defined in the 2004 edition of the
Australasian Code for Reporting of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves (“JORC Code”). Dr. Andrews consents
to the inclusion in this report of the matters based on his information in the form and context in which it appears.
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The loss for the year ended 30 June 2009, after income tax, amounted to $5,562,362 (2008: $11,363,056).
Cash and cash equivalents as at 30 June 2009: $15,607,040 (2008: $3,140,620).

Exploration and evaluation expenditure totalled $1,286,868 for the financial year. This was incurred at the Way
Linggo Gold Project and relates to mine development of the North Vein area (refer to the Review of Operations
commencing on page 10 for more information).

CORPORATE ACTIVITIES
The following activities occurred during the year ended 30 June 2009:

e In December 2008 the Company and its joint venture partner, Reed Resources Ltd, announced an amendment to
their Comet Vale Joint Venture for the Sand Queen Gold Mine in Western Australia. Under the modified terms,
Kingsrose is entitled to 60% of the gold produced from below the 3 Level at Sand Queen, rather than 50% as
previously stated. In addition, the required 25,000 ounce production milestone has been extended to 31 May
2010.

e On 21 January 2009 the Company’s shareholders approved the acquisition of 85% of the advanced, high grade
Way Linggo Gold/Silver mining project located in Sumatra, Indonesia with completion of all conditions precedent
being finalised on 27 February 2009. This resulted in the issue of 42,500,000 ordinary fully paid ‘consideration’
shares to the Vendors with said shares being placed in escrow for a period of 12 months. The shares will be
released from escrow on 27 February 2010.

e On 18 February 2009 Miss Tanya Ashley was appointed Joint Company Secretary.

e On 27 February 2009 Mr. David Hatch resigned as Managing Director and Mr. John Morris was appointed
Executive Chairman (previously non-executive).

e On 28 March 2009 Mr. Dennis Franks resigned as Finance Director and Mr. Tim Spencer was appointed as Finance
Director.

e Following shareholder approval on 7 May 2009, 100,000,000 ordinary fully paid shares were allotted to clients of
Southern Cross Equities on 14 May 2009 at a price of $0.20 each for a total consideration of $20,000,000. Fees of
$1,000,000 were paid to Southern Cross Equities for their services in raising the funds plus an issue of 1,500,000
unlisted options at an exercise price of $0.26 on or before 14 May 2014. The options were allotted within the
discretionary capacity of the Board under ASX Listing Rule 7.1.

SECURITIES ISSUED DURING THE YEAR
Ordinary Shares
During the year the Company issued the following securities:

e On 16 January 2009, 9,700,000 ordinary fully paid shares were allotted within the discretionary capacity of the
Board under ASX Listing Rule 7.1. The shares were issued at $0.10 each to investors under Section 708(1) of the
Corporations Act.

e On 27 February 2009, 42,500,000 ordinary fully paid shares were allotted to Icon Enterprises Limited as
consideration for the acquisition of all the shares in MM Gold Pty Ltd which, through its subsidiaries, owns 85% of
the Way Linggo Gold Project in Sumatra, Indonesia. These shares were issued under the Share Purchase
Agreement which was approved by shareholders in general meeting on 21 January 2009 and are subject to a 12
month escrow period from the date of allotment.
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e On 14 May 2009, 100,000,000 ordinary fully paid shares were allotted to clients of Southern Cross Equities at a
price of $0.20 each for a total consideration of $20,000,000. Fees of $1,000,000 were paid to Southern Cross
Equities as part payment for their services in raising the funds.

Options
During the year the Company issued the following options over fully paid shares.

e InJuly 2008, 2,000,000 listed options, being the balance of the shortfall options from the 1:2 Non- Renounceable
Rights Issue in April 2008, were allotted to a non related party for a total consideration of $10,000.

e On 4 December 2008, 1,000,000 unlisted options were issued to an employee under the Company’s Employee
Share Option Plan. These options are exercisable on or before 4 December 2013 at an exercise price of $0.10
each.

e On 16 February 2009, 2,250,000 unlisted options were issued to employees under the Company’s Employee Share
Option Plan. These options are exercisable on or before 16 February 2014 at an exercise price of $0.14 each.

e On 6 April 2009, 2,000,000 unlisted options were issued to an employee under the Company’s Employee Share
Option Plan. These options are exercisable on or before 6 April 2014 at an exercise price of $0.14 each.

e On 16 April 2009, 2,000,000 unlisted options were issued to a consultant and are exercisable on or before 16 April
2014 at an exercise price of $0.20 each. The options were allotted within the discretionary capacity of the Board
under ASX Listing Rule 7.1.

e As part of the fees paid to Southern Cross Equities for their services in raising the abovementioned $20,000,000,
the Company issued 1,500,000 unlisted options. These options are exercisable on or before 14 May 2014 at an
exercise price of $0.26 each. The options were allotted within the discretionary capacity of the Board under ASX
Listing Rule 7.1.

Option Conversions

No options were exercised during the year under review. Since the end of the year and up to the date of signing this
report, 1,000,000 options were exercised on 12 August 2009 under the Company’s Employee Share Option Plan. These
options were exercised at a price of $0.10 each.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN STATE OF AFFAIRS

On 10 September 2008, the Company entered into a Share Purchase Agreement for the acquisition of the shares in
MMG Pty Ltd (“MMG”) with Icon Enterprises Limited (“lcon”) and its shareholders, including Messrs Morris, Phillips
and Andrews, who are also directors of Kingsrose. Due to changing economic conditions, the agreement was
subsequently varied on 26 November 2008 (as varied, the Share Purchase Agreement).

The Share Purchase Agreement provided for:

e The acquisition by the Company from Icon of 221 issued fully paid shares of A$0.01 each in the capital of MMG
which represents all of the total shares issued by MMG.

e The allotment by the Company to Icon of an aggregate of 42,500,000 fully paid shares in the Company
(Consideration Shares).

Following shareholder approval on 21 January 2009 and completion of all conditions precedent on 27 February 2009

the Company acquired 100% of the voting shares in MMG, from its parent Company, Icon.

MMG holds all of the shares in Natarang Offshore Pty Ltd (“NOPL”), a Company incorporated in Australia. NOPL holds
85% of the shares in PT Natarang Mining (“PTNM”), a Company incorporated in Indonesia. Thus, by acquiring all of
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the shares in MMG, the Company has acquired an 85% interest in the Project. The remaining 15% interest is held by
an Indonesian national.

The Project is being undertaken by PTNM pursuant to a Contract of Work dated 2 December 1986 between the
Republic of Indonesia and PTNM (“Contract of Work” or “COW”).

There have been no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Group other than those listed above.
SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER BALANCE DATE

e On 13 July 2009, the Company allotted 1,500,000 unlisted options to two consultants at an exercise price of
$0.39 each, exercisable on or before 13 July 2014. The options were allotted within the discretionary capacity of
the Board under ASX Listing Rule 7.1.

e On 28 July 2009, the Company’s subsidiary, PT Natarang Mining, entered into a contract with Mr. Alec Sharland
to assume the position of Production Manager for the Way Linggo Gold Project. He commenced work on 7
September 2009. As a result of this appointment he was allotted 1,000,000 unlisted options under the
Company’s Employee Share Option Plan. These options are exercisable on or before 28 July 2014 at an exercise
price of $0.48 each.

e On 12 August 2009 1,000,000 options were exercised under the Company’s Employee Share Option Plan. The
options were exercised at a price of $0.10 each.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS

The Company aims to:

e commission the Way Linggo Gold Project by March 2010;

e continue development of the 4 Level at Comet Vale; and

e continue to evaluate potential growth opportunities with the focus being on resource projects with low entry
level costs and high margins.

These activities are ongoing.
ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is subject to significant environmental regulation in respect to its exploration activities. The economic
entity aims to ensure that appropriate standard of environmental care is achieved, and in doing so, that it is aware of
and is in compliance with all environmental legislation. The Directors of the Group are not aware of any breach of
environmental legislation during the year under review.

Page 20



Kingsrose Mining Limited Annual Report
Year ended 30 June 2009

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont’d)
SHARE OPTIONS
Unissued shares

As at the date of this report, there were 55,275,010 ordinary shares under option, as follows:

No. Listed No. Unlisted Exercise Price Expiry Date

ESOP Non-ESOP

38,525,010 (i) $0.20 31 Dec 2012

5,500,000 (ii) $0.25 31 Dec 2012

1,000,000 (iii) $0.10 04 Dec 2013

2,250,000 (iii) $0.14 18 Feb 2014

2,000,000 (iii) $0.14 09 Apr 2014

2,000,000 (iv) $0.20 16 Apr 2014

1,500,000 (v) $0.26 14 May 2014

1,500,000 (vi) $0.39 13 Jul 2014

1,000,000 (iii) $0.48 28 Jul 2014

The above options are exercisable on or before the expiry date.

(i) Options issued pursuant to a Non Renounceable Rights Issue on the basis of one option for every two
ordinary shares held at the date of entitlement.

(ii) Options issued to Directors and the Company Secretary prior to the Company’s listing on the ASX and are
subject to escrow restrictions imposed by the ASX.

(iii) Options issued to employees under the Company’s Employee Share Option Plan which was approved by
shareholders on 6 May 2008.

(iv) Options issued to a consultant within the discretionary capacity of the Board under ASX Listing Rule 7.1.

(v) Options issued to Southern Cross Equities as part fees for their services in raising $20,000,000. The options
were issued within the discretionary capacity of the Board under ASX Listing Rule 7.1.

(vi) Options issued to two consultants within the discretionary capacity of the Board under ASX Listing Rule 7.1.

There are no participating rights or entitlements inherent in the options and option holders are not entitled to
participate in new issues of capital or bonus issues offered or made to shareholders during the currency of the options
without first exercising these options into ordinary fully paid shares.

Shares issued as a result of exercising options

No shares were issued as a result of the exercise of any options over fully paid shares during the reporting period.
Since the end of the year and up to the date of signing this report, 1,000,000 options were exercised on 12 August
2009 under the Company’s Employee Share Option Plan. These options were exercised at a price of $0.10 each.

INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICERS

An indemnity agreement has been entered into between the Company and each of the Directors named earlier in this
report and with each full-time Officer, including persons who act as Directors on behalf of the Company on the boards
of any Company that the Company has a financial interest in. Under the agreement, the Company has agreed to
indemnify those officers against any claim or for any expenses or costs, to the extent permitted by law, which may
arise as a result of work performed in their respective capacities. In addition, the agreement provides for the Company
to procure and pay the premium for an insurance policy to cover, to the extent permitted by law, such claims and
expenses, and to continue maintaining an insurance policy for a period of seven years after an officer has ceased to
act in that capacity.
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INSURANCE PREMIUM PAID FOR OFFICERS

The Company has paid an insurance premium in respect of a contract insuring each of the Directors of the Company
named earlier in this report and the Officers of the Company against liabilities and expenses, to the extent permitted
by law, arising from claims made against them in their capacity as Directors and Officers of the Company, other than
conduct involving a wilful breach of duty in relation to the Company. Due to confidentiality restrictions in the
insurance policy the premium paid has not been disclosed.

DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS

Six Directors’ meetings were held during the financial year. In addition to formal Board meetings, matters requiring
Board approval were dealt with via circular resolutions. 14 circular resolutions were signed by the Directors during
the financial year.

Directors’ Meetings

Number meetings held Number meetings
Director whilst a director attended
J.C. Morris 6 6
D.F. Hatch 2 2
D.W. Franks 2 2
J.W. Phillips 6 5
M.J. Andrews 6 5
T.G. Spencer 2 2

e  Mr. Hatch resigned as a Director of the Company on 27 February 2009.
e  Mr. Franks resigned as a Director of the Company on 28 March 2009.
e Mr. Spencer was appointed as a Director of the Company on 28 March 2009.

The Company does not presently have separate nomination, remuneration or audit committees as the Directors
believe that the Company is not yet of a size nor are its financial affairs of such complexity to justify these separate
committees. All matters which might be dealt with by such committees are subject to the full scrutiny of Board
meetings. This decision will be reviewed as the Company develops in the future. Notwithstanding this, it is the
Board’s responsibility to ensure that an effective internal control framework exists within the entity.

REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED)

This report outlines the remuneration arrangements in place for Directors and other Key Management Personnel of
the Company in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and its regulations. These remuneration disclosures have
been audited.

For the purposes of this report Key Management Personnel (“KMP”) of the Company are defined as those persons
having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the major activities of the Company, directly
or indirectly.

For the purposes of this report, the term ‘executive’ encompasses senior executives, general managers and Company
Secretaries of the Group and the Company.
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Date of Date of

Name Position appointment resignation
Directors
J.C. Morris Non-Executive Chairman 17-Aug-07 -
D.F. Hatch Managing Director 22-Oct-07 27-Feb-09
D.W. Franks Non-Executive Director 4-Feb-08 28-Mar-09
J.W. Phillips Non-Executive Director 12-Jan-05 -
M.J. Andrews Non-Executive Director 9-Aug-07 -
T.G. Spencer Finance Director 28-Mar-09 -
Key Management Personnel
H. Husinsjah President Director (PTNM) 9-Apr-99 -
M. Green Operations Manager 1-Feb-05 -
J. P. Smith Joint Company Secretary 9-Aug-07 -
T.C.Ashley Joint Company Secretary 18-Feb-09 -

There have been no changes since the end of the year and up to the date of signing this report.

Remuneration Report — tenure of directors and KMP
Non-Executive Director Remuneration

Objective
The Board seeks to set aggregate remuneration at a level which provides the Company with the ability to attract and
retain Directors of the highest calibre, whilst incurring a cost which is acceptable to shareholders.

Structure

The Constitution and the ASX Listing Rules specify that the aggregate remuneration of non-executive Directors shall be
determined from time to time by a general meeting. An amount not exceeding the amount determined is then
divided between the Directors as agreed. The current aggregate remuneration is $110,000 (excluding share-based
payments). A share based payment valued at $64,600 was made to Mr. Franks in his capacity as a non-executive
director during the financial year. This is considered a departure from the Corporate Governance Recommendations
as published by the ASX Corporate Governance Council.

The amount of aggregate remuneration sought to be approved by shareholders and the manner in which it is
apportioned amongst Directors is reviewed annually. The Board considers advice from external consultants as well as
the fees paid to non-executive Directors of comparable companies when undertaking the annual review process.

Non-executive directors are encouraged by the Board to hold shares in the Company (purchased by the Director on
market). Itis considered good governance for Directors to have a stake in the Company whose board he or she sits.

The non-executive directors do not receive retirement benefits but are able to participate in share option based
incentive programmes in accordance with Company policy.

The remuneration of non-executive Directors for the years ending 30 June 2009 and 30 June 2008 is detailed in Tables
1 and 2 respectively in this report.
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Executive Remuneration Structure

Objective
The Group aims to reward executives with a level and mix of remuneration commensurate with their position and
responsibilities within the Group so as to:

e Reward executives for Group, business unit and individual performance against targets set by reference to
appropriate benchmarks.

e Align the interests of executives with those of shareholders.

e Ensure total remuneration is competitive by market standards.

Structure
In determining the level and make-up of executive remuneration, the Board seeks independent advice, as needed, and
reviews industry standards.

Remuneration consists of the following key elements:

e  Fixed remuneration (base salary, superannuation and non-monetary benefits)
e  Variable remuneration

e Short term incentive (STI)

e Longterm incentive (LTI)

The proportion of fixed remuneration and variable remuneration is established for each executive by the Board. At
the Group’s current stage of development and given the small number of key management personnel, the Board of
the Company determines appropriate levels of remuneration and incentives based on individual performance and
comparable remuneration and incentives offered in the marketplace for similar roles rather than applying a formal set
of criteria. This approach applies to both the fixed and variable remuneration and, to a certain extent, short term
incentives. Both short and long term incentives are normally in the form of share options so as to link the value and
therefore benefit to the recipient to company performance in terms of movements in the Company’s share price.

Fixed Remuneration

Objective

The level of fixed remuneration is set so as to provide a base level of remuneration which is both appropriate to the
position and is competitive in the market. Fixed remuneration is reviewed annually by the Board having regard to the
Company and individual performance, relevant comparable remuneration in the mining exploration industry and
external advice. Executives receive their fixed remuneration in cash.

Structure

Executives are given the opportunity to receive their fixed (primary) remuneration in a variety of forms including cash
and fringe benefits. It is intended that the manner of payment chosen will be optimal for the recipient without undue
cost to the Group.

The fixed remuneration component of executives is detailed in Table 1.
Variable Remuneration — Short Term Incentive (STI)

Objective

The objective of the STI program is to link the achievement of the Group’s operational targets with the remuneration
received by the executives with meeting those targets. The total potential STI available is set at a level so as to
provide sufficient incentive to the executive to achieve the operational targets and such that the cost to the Group is
reasonable in the circumstances.

Structure
Individual and Company operating targets associated with traditional financial and non-financial measures are difficult
to set given the small number of Executives and the need to be flexible and multi-tasked, as the Company responds to
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a continually changing business environment. Consequently, a formal process of defining Key Performance Indicators
(KPI's) and setting targets against the KPI’s has not been adopted at the present time. Due to the absence of any set
KPI's the existing remuneration is not linked to Company Performance.

The Company’s Performance since listing on the ASX on 7 December 2007 is as follows:

Year ended EPS Share Price
2008 (17.40) $0.25
2009 (4.20) $0.37

Share price on 7 December 2007 was $0.40.

The aggregate of annual STl payments available for executives across the Company is subject to the approval of the
Board. Payments are usually delivered as a cash bonus. There were no STl payments during the financial year.

Variable Remuneration — Long Term Incentive (LTI)

Objective

The objective of the LTI plan is to reward Executives in a manner which aligns the element of remuneration with the
creation of shareholder wealth. As such LTI’s are made to executives who are able to influence the generation of
shareholder wealth and thus have an impact on the Group’s performance. The level of LTI granted is, in turn,
dependent on the Company’s recent share price performance, the seniority of the Executive and the responsibilities
the Executive assumes in the Company.

Structure
LTI grants to executives are delivered in the form of employee share options. These options are issued at an exercise
price determined by the Board at the time of issue.

The employee share options are generally issued in accordance with the Company’s Share Option Plan (“ESOP”);
however most unlisted options issued to Executives were issued outside of the Plan: i.e. Options issued to Messrs
Morris, Hatch, Andrews and Mrs Smith were issued prior to the Company’s listing on the ASX. To date, 4,250,000
options have been issued under the ESOP which includes 2,000,000 to Mr Spencer and 250,000 to Miss Ashley.

Typically, the grant of LTI’s occurs at the commencement of employment or in the event that the individual receives a
promotion and, as such, is not subsequently affected by the individual’s performance over time. However, under
certain circumstances, including breach of employment conditions, the Directors may cause the options to expire prior
to their vesting date. In addition, individual performance is more commonly rewarded over time through STI’s.

Table 3 provides details of LTI options granted and the value of options granted, exercised and lapsed during the year.
Remuneration Incentives

Director and executive remuneration is currently not linked to either long term or short term performance conditions.
The Board feels that the expiry date and exercise price of the options currently on issue to the directors and
executives is sufficient to align the goals of the directors and executives with those of the shareholders to maximise
shareholders wealth, and as such, has not set any performance conditions for the directors or the executives of the
Company. The Board will continue to monitor this policy to ensure that it is appropriate for the Company in future
years.

The Company does not currently have a policy addressing the hedging of share and options granted to key
management personnel as part of their remuneration.
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Employment Contracts

Chairman

During his tenure as Non-Executive Chairman, Mr Morris was paid a Director’s fee of $40,000 per annum plus
statutory superannuation of 9%. However, following the resignation of the Managing Director in February 2009, he

was appointed Executive Chairman.

Effective 1 May 2009, the non executive fees paid to Mr. Morris ceased and thereafter he has received a salary of
$140,000 per annum plus 9% statutory superannuation.

Currently, no formal agreement exists between the Chairman and the Company.

In his role as Executive Chairman, duties include those of managing the day to day activities of the Company in
conjunction with other members of the Board.

Managing Director

In December 2007 the Company entered into an employment agreement with Mr. David Hatch as Managing Director
with remuneration set at $300,000 per annum base salary plus statutory superannuation of 9%. Mr Hatch was also
provided with a motor vehicle allowance to the value of $25,000 per annum. Mr Hatch was not paid a separate
Director’s fee for serving on the Board. Mr. Hatch resigned as a director of the Company on 27 February 2009.

Non Executive Directors
As Non-Executive Directors, Dr. Andrews and Mr. Phillips are each paid Director’s fees of $20,000 per annum.

Until his resignation as a Director in March 2009, Mr. Franks was paid Non-Executive Director’s fees of $30,000 per
annum plus 9% statutory superannuation. Following his resignation, Mr Franks has entered into a Consultancy
Agreement with the Company whereby he receives $2,000 per month. This Consultancy Arrangement is a rolling
monthly arrangement which may be varied or terminated at any time for the giving of one month’s notice on either
side.

Directors may be paid consulting fees on additional time spent on Company business, including reasonable expenses
incurred by them on business of the Company.

Finance Director

Mr. Spencer was initially employed by the Company in February 2009 as Chief Financial Officer. He was subsequently
appointed Finance Director in March 2009.

Mr. Spencer has a three year contract and receives a salary of $183,500 per annum and 9% statutory superannuation
contributions. He has also been granted 2,000,000 unlisted options under the Company’s Employee Option Plan at an
exercise price of $0.14 with an expiry date of 16 February 2014.

Director - PT Natarang Mining

Mr. Herryansjah Husinsjah is employed under an Indonesian employment contract with no fixed term. He receives an
annual salary of US$96,000. One month’s notice is required by either party to terminate employment.

Operations Manager

In September 2007, the Company entered into a Mining Services Agreement with Westralmen Pty Ltd
(“Westralmen”), a company partly owned by Mr. M. Green. Westralmen performs mining services for the Company.
The initial term of the contract was for a period of two years and has been extended by mutual agreement for an
indefinite period of time at the same rate.
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In consideration of Westralmen performing the mining services, the Company paid Westralmen a services fee of
$418,000 per annum inclusive of GST in equal instalments monthly in arrears until 30 August 2009 and subsequent to
the recent extension, the service fee will remain unchanged. 50% of this amount has been included as remuneration
for Mr. Green for services provided to the Company. Westralmen is solely responsible for all taxes incurred or payable
in respect of the services fee received from the Company.

The services that Westralmen provides to the Company includes managing all aspects of the conduct of mining
operations on the joint venture tenements, preparing and submitting expenditure proposals and work programs,
maintaining all mining equipment, reporting to the Company in respect of the progress of the services and preparing

and submitting any reports relating to the mining services as the Company requires.

Under the terms of the agreement, the Company effects and maintains all insurances required by all applicable laws in
respect of the mining services.

Joint Company Secretaries

No formal employment agreements exist between the Company and the Joint Company Secretaries. One month’s
notice is required by either party to terminate employment.

Mrs. Smith receives remuneration of $110,000 pa (pro rata to days worked) and 9% statutory superannuation.

Miss Ashley receives remuneration of $77,000 pa and 9% statutory superannuation.
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Remuneration of key management personnel and the executives of the Company and the Group for 2009 Table 1. Remuneration for the year ended 30 June 2009
Share-
Post Termination based pay-
Short Term employment benefits Long term Share-based payment Total ments %
Non- Long
Salary and monetary Other Incentive service
fees Cash bonus benefits (vi) Superannuation Payments plans leave Shares Options
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Executive directors
J.C. Morris(i) - - - - 61,767 - - - - - 61,767 -
D.F. Hatch (ii) 151,333 - - 10,349 66,667 200,112 - - - - 428,461 -
T.G. Spencer(iii) 68,813 - - - 6,193 - - - - 104,246 179,252 58.2%
Sub-total executive 220,146 - - 10,349 134,627 200,112 - - - 104,246 669,480

Non-Executive directors

M.J. Andrews 111,100 - - - 1,800 - - - - - 112,900 -
J.W. Phillips 20,000 - - - 1,800 - - - - - 21,800 -
D.W. Franks(iv) 28,500 - - - 2,025 - - - - 64,600 95,125 67.9%
Sub-total non-executive 159,600 - - - 5,625 - - - - 64,600 229,825

Other KMP

Herryansjah 96,799 - - - - - - - - - 96,799 -
M. Green 209,000 - - 6,790 - - - - - - 215,790 -
J.P. Smith 1,667 - - - 68,333 - - - - - 70,000 -
T.C. Ashley(v) 63,583 - - - 5,722 - - - - 13,031 82,336 15.8%
Sub-total KMP 371,049 - - 6,790 74,055 - - - - 13,031 464,925

TOTAL 750,795 - - 17,139 214,307 200,112 - - - 181,877 1,364,230 -

(i) status changed from non-executive to executive 27 February 2009. Mr Morris has elected to receive his remuneration into superannuation.

(ii) resigned 27 February 2009. The termination payment included six months worth of salary and benefits as provided in Mr. Hatch’s employment contract.
(iii) appointed 28 March 2009

(iv) resigned 28 March 2009

(v) appointed as Joint Company Secretary 18 February 2009

(vi) includes payment of motor vehicle allowances and/or sundry services.

No elements of remuneration are performance based.
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Remuneration of key management personnel and the executives of the Company. Table 2. Remuneration for the year ended 30 June 2008

Parent - 2008

Share-
Post Termination based pay-
Short Term employment benefits Long term Share-based payment Total ments %
Salary and monetary Incentive serviZe
fees Cash bonus benefits Other Superannuation Payments plans leave Shares Options
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Executive directors
D.F. Hatch 175,000 - - 14,583 34,010 - - - - 92,700 316,293 29.3%
Sub-total executive 175,000 - - 14,583 34,010 - - - - 92,700 316,293
Non-Executive directors
J.C. Morris 23,333 - - - 2,100 - - - - 30,900 56,333 54.9%
D.W. Franks 10,000 - - - 900 - - - - 95,500 106,400 89.8%
J.W. Phillips 11,667 - - - 1,050 - - - - - 12,717 -
M.J. Andrews 11,667 - - - 1,050 - - - - 30,900 43,617 70.8%
Sub-total non-executive 56,667 - - - 5,100 - - - - 157,300 219,067
Other key management personnel
M. Green 171,040 - - - 2,760 - - - - - 173,800 -
J.P. Smith - - - - 59,051 - - - 48,000 9,800 116,851 49.5%
Sub-total key management pers 171,040 - - - 61,811 - - - 48,000 9,800 290,651
TOTAL 402,707 - - 14,583 100,921 - - - 48,000 259,800 826,011

There were no alterations to the terms and conditions of options granted as remuneration since their grant date.
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Value of options Value of options Value of options

exercised lapsed
granted during during the During the
the year Year year
$ $ $
D.W. Franks 64,600
T.G. Spencer 104,246 - -
T.C. Ashley 13,031 - -

Table 3 - Compensation Options granted to directors and named executives during the financial year (consolidated)

30-Jun-09 Granted Terms and conditions for each Grant Vested
Granted options Issue Fair value Exercise price Expiry First Last Vested number % of options
date per option at per option date exercise exercise of options vested
grant date
date date
Directors
D.W. Franks 1,000,000 4-Dec-08 $0.06 $0.10 4-Dec-13 4-Dec-08 4-Dec-13 1,000,000 100%
T.G. Spencer 2,000,000 18-Feb-09 $0.12 S0.14 18-Feb-14 18-Feb-09 18-Feb-14 2,000,000 100%
Executives
T.C. Ashley 250,000 18-Feb-09 $0.12 $0.14 18-Feb-14 18-Feb-09 18-Feb-14 250,000 100%

There were no forfeitures during the year.
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Shares issued on exercise of compensation options
No compensation options have been exercised during the financial year.

End of Remuneration Report.

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION AND NON-AUDIT SERVICES

The auditor’s independence declaration for the year end 30 June 2009 is on page 32. This declaration forms part of
this directors’ report.

NON-AUDIT SERVICES

The following non-audit services were provided by the entity’s auditor, Ernst & Young. The directors are satisfied that
the provision of non-audit is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the
Corporations Act 2001. The nature and scope of each type of non-audit service provided means that auditor
independence was not compromised.
Ernst & Young received or are due to receive the following amounts for the provision of non-audit services:

e Acquisition due diligence $28,698

e Tax compliance $12,800

This report is signed for and on behalf of the Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

John C. Morris
Executive Chairman

Perth, 25 September 2009
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Auditor’'s Independence Declaration to the Directors of Kingsrose Mining
Limited

In relation to our audit of the financial report of Kingsrose Mining Limited for the financial year ended 30
June 2009, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of the auditor
independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of professional conduct.

BT

Ernst & Young

G H Meyerowitz
Partner

Perth
25 September 2009

Liability limited by a scheme approved
under Professional Standards Legislation
GHM:NR:Kingsrose:023 32
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Board of Directors of Kingsrose Mining Limited is responsible for the corporate governance of the Company. The
Board guides and monitors the business and affairs of the Company on behalf of the shareholders by whom they are
elected and to whom they are accountable. This statement reports on the Company’s key governance principles and

practices.

1. COMPLIANCE WITH BEST PRACTICE RECOMMENDATIONS

The Company, as a listed entity, must comply with the Corporations Act 2001 and the Australian Securities
Exchange Limited (ASX) Listing Rules. The ASX Listing Rules require the Company to report on the extent to
which it has followed the Corporate Governance Recommendations published by the ASX Corporate
Governance Council (ASXCGC). Where a recommendation has not been followed, that fact is disclosed together
with the reasons for the departure.

The table below summarises the Company’s compliance with the

Recommendations:

Corporate Governance Council’s

Principle # ASX Corporate Governance Council Recommendations Reference Comply
Principle 1 Lay solid foundations for management and oversight
1.1 | Establish the functions reserved to the Board and those 2(a) Yes
delegated to senior executives and disclose those functions.
1.2 | Disclose the process for evaluating the performance of senior 2(h), 3(b), Yes
executives. Remuneration Report
1.3 | Provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on 2(a), 2(h), 3(b), Yes
principle 1. Remuneration Report
Principle 2 Structure the Board to add value
2.1 | A majority of the board should be independent directors. 2(e) No
2.2 | The Chair should be an independent director. 2(c), 2(e) No
2.3 | The roles of chair and Managing Director should not be 2(b), 2(c) No
exercised by the same individual.
2.4 | The board should establish a nomination committee. 2(d) No
2.5 | Disclose the process for evaluating the performance of the 2(h) Yes
board, its committees and individual directors.
2.6 | Provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on 2(b), 2(c), 2(d), 2(e), Yes
principle 2. 2(h)
Principle 3 Promote ethical and responsible decision-making
3.1 | Establish a code of conduct and disclose the code or a summary 4(a) Yes
as to:
e the practices necessary to maintain confidence in the Yes
Company’s integrity;
e the practices necessary to take into account the Company’s Yes
legal obligations and the reasonable expectations of its
stakeholders; and
e the responsibility and accountability of individuals for Yes
reporting and investigating reports of unethical practices.
3.2 | Establish a policy concerning trading in Company securities by 4(b) Yes
directors, senior executives and employees and disclose the
policy or a summary.
3.3 | Provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on 4(a), 4(b) Yes
principle 3.
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Principle # ASX Corporate Governance Council Recommendations Reference Comply

Principle 4 Safeguard integrity in financial reporting

4.1 | The board should establish an audit committee. 3(a) No
4.2 | The audit committee should be structured so that it: 3(a)
e consists only of non-executive directors; No
e consists of a majority of independent directors; No
e s chaired by an independent chair, who is not chair of the
board; and No
e has at least three members. No
4.3 | The audit committee should have a formal charter 3(a) No
4.4 | Provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on 3(a) Yes
principle 4.

Principle 5 Make timely and balanced disclosure

5.1 | Establish written policies designed to ensure compliance with 5(a), 5(b) Yes
ASX Listing Rule disclosure requirements and to ensure
accountability at senior executive level for that compliance and
disclose those policies or a summary of those policies.

5.2 | Provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on 5(a), 5(b) Yes
principle 5.

Principle 6 Respect the rights of shareholders

6.1 | Design a communications policy for promoting effective 5(a), 5(b) Yes
communication with shareholders and encouraging their
participation at general meetings and disclose the policy or a
summary of that policy.

6.2 | Provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on 5(a), 5(b) Yes
principle 6.

Principle 7 | Recognise and manage risk

7.1 | Establish policies for the oversight and management of material 6(a) Yes
business risks and disclose a summary of those policies.

7.2 | The board should require management to design and 6(a), 6(b), 6(d) Yes
implement the risk management and internal control system to
manage the Company’s material business risks and report to it
on whether those risks are being managed effectively. The
board should disclose that management has reported to it as to
the effectiveness of the Company’s management of its material
business risks.

7.3 | The board should disclose whether it had received assurance 6(c) Yes
from the Managing Director and the chief financial officer that
the declaration provided in accordance with section 295A of
the Corporations Act is founded on a sound system of risk
management and internal control and that the system is
operating effectively in all material respects in relation to
financial reporting risks.

7.4 | Provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on | 6(a), 6(b), 6(c), 6(d) Yes
principle 7.
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Principle 8 Remunerate fairly and responsibly
8.1 | The board should establish a remuneration committee. 3(b) No
8.2 | Clearly distinguish the structure on non-executive directors’ | 3(b), Remuneration Yes
remuneration from that of executive directors and senior Report
executives.
8.3 | Provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on 3(b), Yes
principle 8.

2. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

2(a) Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is accountable to the shareholders and investors for the overall performance of the Company and
takes responsibility for monitoring the Company’s business and affairs and setting its strategic direction,
establishing and overseeing the Company’s financial position.

The Board is responsible for:

Appointing, evaluating, rewarding and if necessary the removal of the Managing Director and senior
management;

Development of corporate objectives and strategy with management and approving plans, new
investments, major capital and operating expenditures and major funding activities proposed by
management;

Monitoring actual performance against defined performance expectations and reviewing operating
information to understand at all times the state of the health of the Company;

Overseeing the management of business risks, safety and occupational health, environmental issues
and community development;

Satisfying itself that the financial statements of the Company fairly and accurately set out the
financial position and financial performance of the Company for the period under review;

Satisfying itself that there are appropriate reporting systems and controls in place to assure the
board that proper operational, financial, compliance, risk management and internal control process
are in place and functioning appropriately.

Approving and monitoring financial and other reporting;
Assuring itself that appropriate audit arrangements are in place;

Ensuring that the Company acts legally and responsibly on all matters and assuring itself that the
Company has adopted a Code of Conduct and that the Company practice is consistent with that
Code; and other policies; and

Reporting to and advising shareholders.

Other than as specifically reserved to the Board, responsibility for the day-to-day management of the
Company’s business activities is delegated to the Executive Management.

2(b) Board Composition

The Directors determine the composition of the Board employing the following principles:

the Board, in accordance with the Company’s constitution must comprise a minimum of three
Directors;

the roles of the Chairman of the Board and of the Managing Director should be exercised by
different individuals if possible;

the majority of the Board should comprise Directors who are non-executive; however at present this
is not the case as the Company has a total of four Directors: two executive and two non-executive;

the Board should represent a broad range of qualifications, experience and expertise considered of
benefit to the Company; and
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e the Board must be structured in such a way that it has a proper understanding of, and competency
in, the current and emerging issues facing the Company, and can effectively review management’s
decisions.

The Board is currently comprised of two non-executive Directors and two executive Directors. Details of the
members of the Board, their experience, expertise, qualifications, terms of office and independent status are
set out in the Directors’ Report of the Annual Report under the heading “Directors”.

The Board recognises the Corporate Governance Council’s recommendation that the Chair should be an
independent director. From date of listing (December 2007) to February 2009, Mr. Morris held the position of
non-executive Chairman. Following the resignation of the Managing Director in February 2009, Mr. Morris
assumed the position of Executive Chairman. It can be argued that he does not meet the definition of
independence. However, the Board believes that Mr. Morris is the most appropriate person to lead the Board
and that he is able to and does bring quality and independent judgment to all relevant issues falling within the
scope of the role of Chairman and that the Group as a whole benefits from his long standing experience of its
operations and business relationships.

There are procedures in place, agreed by the Board, to enable directors in furtherance of their duties to seek
independent professional advice at the Company's expense.

The term in office held by each director in office at the date of this report is as follows:
Name Term in Office

e J.C. Morris — 2 years

e J.W. Phillips — 4 % years
e M.J. Andrews — 2 years

e T.G. Spencer —9 months

For additional details regarding board appointments, please refer the Directors’ Report or to our website
<www.kingsrosemining.com.au>

The Company’s constitution requires one-third of the Directors (or the next lowest whole number) to retire by
rotation at each Annual General Meeting (AGM). The Directors to retire at each AGM are those who have been
longest in office since their last election. Where Directors have served for equal periods, they may agree
amongst themselves or determine by lot who will retire. A Director must retire in any event at the third AGM
since he or she was last elected or re-elected. Retiring Directors may offer themselves for re-election.

A Director appointed as an additional or casual Director by the Board will hold office until the next AGM when
they may be re-elected. If a Managing Director is appointed he or she will not be subject to retirement by
rotation and, along with any Director appointed as an additional or casual Director, is not to be taken into
account in determining the number of Directors required to retire by rotation.

The table below sets out the detail of the tenure of each Director at the date of this report.

Name Position First Appointed Independent
J.C. Morris Executive Chairman 17-Aug-07 No
J.W. Phillips Non-executive Director 12-Jan-05 No
M.J. Andrews Non-executive Director 9-Aug-07 No
T.G. Spencer Finance Director 28-Mar-09 Yes
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Chairman and Managing Director
The roles of Chairman and Managing Director (if one is appointed) are not exercised by the same individual.

The Chairman is responsible for leading the Board, ensuring Directors are properly briefed in all matters
relevant to their role and responsibilities, facilitating Board discussions and managing the Board’s relationship
with the Company’s executive.

The Managing Director is responsible for implementing the Company’s strategies and policies. The Board
specifies that these are generally separate roles to be undertaken by separate people.

Until February 2009 the composition of the Board included a Non-Executive Chairman (Mr Morris) and a
Managing Director (Mr. Hatch); however, following Mr Hatch’s resignation, the position of Managing Director
has not been filled and this role has been assumed by the Chairman and/or Executive Management.

The Board has considered this matter carefully and decided that it does not affect the operation of the
Company.
The Chairman is responsible for:

e |eadership of the Board;

e the efficient organisation and conduct of the Board’s functions;

e the promotion of constructive and respectful relations between Board members and between the
Board and management;

e contributing to the briefing of Directors in relation to issues arising at Board meetings;
e facilitating the effective contribution of all Board members; and

e committing the time necessary to effectively discharge the role of the Chairman.

The Board does not comply with the ASX Recommendation 2.2 in that the Chairman is an Executive Director, is
associated with a substantial shareholder and has a material contractual relationship with the Company.

The Managing Director / Executive Directors are responsible for:
e implementing the Company’s strategies and policies; and

e the day-to-day management of the Company’s business activities
The Board specifies that generally the roles of the Chairman and the Managing Director are separate roles to be
undertaken by separate people and the Managing Director assumes the role of Chief Executive Officer.
However, as previously stated, the role of Managing Director is currently being handled by the Chairman
and/or Executive Management.

Nomination Committee

The Company does not comply with ASX Recommendation 2.4. The Company is not of a relevant size to
consider formation of a nomination committee to deal with the selection and appointment of new Directors
and as such a nomination committee has not been formed.

Nominations of new Directors are considered by the full Board in accordance with the Company’s
New Directors Policy”.

“

Selection of

Independent Directors

The Company recognises that independent directors are important in assuring shareholders that the Board is
properly fulfilling its role and is diligent in holding senior management accountable for its performance. The
Board assesses each of the directors against specific criteria to decide whether they are in a position to exercise
independent judgment.

Directors of Kingsrose Mining Limited are considered to be independent when they are independent of
management and free from any business or other relationship that could materially interfere with, or could
reasonably be perceived to materially interfere with, the exercise of their unfettered and independent
judgement.
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In making this assessment, the Board considers all relevant facts and circumstances. Relationships that the
Board will take into consideration when assessing independence are whether a Director:

e is a substantial shareholder of the Company or an officer of, or otherwise associated directly with, a
substantial shareholder of the Company;

e is employed, or has previously been employed in an executive capacity by the Company or another
Company member, and there has not been a period of at least three years between ceasing such
employment and serving on the Board;

e has within the last three years been a principal of a material professional advisor or a material
consultant to the Company or another Company member, or an employee materially associated with
the service provided;

e is a material supplier or customer of the Company or other Company member, or an officer of or
otherwise associated directly or indirectly with a material supplier or customer; or

e has a material contractual relationship with the Company or another Company member other than as
a Director.
The Board believes that the Company is not of sufficient size to warrant the inclusion of more independent
non-executive Directors in order to meet the ASX recommendation of maintaining a majority of independent
non-executive Directors. The Company maintains a mix of Directors from different backgrounds with
complementary skills and experience.

Avoidance of conflicts of interest by a Director

In order to ensure that any interests of a Director in a particular matter to be considered by the Board are
known by each Director, each Director is required by the Company to disclose any relationships, duties or
interests held that may give rise to a potential conflict. Directors are required to adhere strictly to constraints
on their participation and voting in relation to any matters in which they may have an interest.

Board access to information and independent advice

Directors are able to access members of the management team at any time to request relevant information.
There are procedures in place, agreed by the Board, to enable Directors, in furtherance of their duties, to seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.

Review of Board performance

The performance of the Board is reviewed regularly by the Chairman. The Chairman conducts performance
evaluations which involve an assessment of each Board member’s performance against specific and
measurable qualitative and quantitative performance criteria. The performance criteria against which directors
and executives are assessed is aligned with the financial and non-financial objectives of Kingsrose Mining
Limited. Directors whose performance is consistently unsatisfactory may be asked to retire.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

Given the size and scale of the Company’s operations the full Board undertakes the role of the Audit
Committee. The role and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are summarised below.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the integrity of the Company’s financial reporting and
overseeing the independence of the external auditors. The Board sets aside time to deal with issues and
responsibilities usually delegated to the Audit Committee to ensure the integrity of the financial statements of
the Company and the independence of the auditor.

The Board reviews the audited annual and half-year financial statements and any reports which the Company
published financial statements and recommends their approval to the members. The Board also reviews
annually the appointment of the external auditor, their independence and their fees.

The Board is also responsible for establishing policies on risk oversight and management. The Company has not
formed a separate Risk Management Committee due to the size and scale of its operations.
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External Auditors

The Company’s policy is to appoint external auditors who clearly demonstrate quality and independence. The
performance of the external auditor is reviewed annually and applications for tender of external audit services
are requested as deemed appropriate, taking into consideration assessment of performance, existing value and
tender costs. It is Ernst & Young's policy to rotate engagement partners on listed companies at least every five
years.

An analysis of fees paid to the external auditors, including a break-down of fees for non-audit services, is
provided in the notes to the financial statements in the Annual Report.

There is no indemnity provided by the Company to the auditor in respect of any potential liability to third
parties.

The external auditor is requested to attend the annual general meeting and be available to answer shareholder
guestions about the conduct of the audit and preparation and content of the audit report.

The Directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit services during the year by the auditors is compatible
with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act.

The Directors are satisfied that the provision of the non-audit services did not compromise the auditor’s
independence requirements of the Corporations Act because the services were provided by persons who were
not involved in the audit and the decision as to whether or not to accept the tax planning advice was made by
management.

Remuneration Committee

The role of a Remuneration Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities in respect of
establishing appropriate remuneration levels and incentive policies for employees.

The Board has not established a separate Remuneration Committee due to the size and scale of its operations.
This does not comply with Recommendation 8.1 however the Board as a whole takes responsibility for such
issues.

The Board is responsible for determining and reviewing compensation arrangements for the directors
themselves and the executive team, reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
incentive schemes and superannuation arrangements, reviewing the remuneration of both executive and non-
executive directors.

The Company has structured the remuneration of its senior executive such that it comprises a fixed salary,
statutory superannuation and participation in the Company’s employee share option plan. The Company
believes that by remunerating senior executives in this manner it rewards them for performance and aligns

their interests with those of shareholders and increases the Company’s performance.

Non-executive directors are paid their fees out of the maximum aggregate amount approved by shareholders
for non-executive director remuneration.

The remuneration received by directors and executives in the current period is contained in the “Remuneration
Report” within the Directors’ Report of the Annual Report.

There is no scheme to provide retirement benefits to non-executive directors.
Finance Committee

The Board has not established a separate Finance Committee due to the size and scale of its operations.
However the Board as a whole takes responsibility for such issues, viz:
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e  Establishing and monitoring the Company’s capital management strategy, including dividend payment
strategies;

e Assessing the Company’s funding requirements regarding specific funding proposals;

e  Monitoring borrowings from financial institutions and compliance with borrowing covenants.

Treasury Committee

The Board has not established a separate Treasury Committee due to the size and scale of its operations.
However the Board as a whole takes responsibility for such issues in that it monitors financial risks and
exposure from movements in interest rates and exchange rates.

ETHICAL AND RESPONSIBLE DECISION MAKING
Code of Ethics and Conduct

The Board endeavours to ensure that the Directors, officers and employees of the Company act with integrity
and observe the highest standards of behaviour and business ethics in relation to their corporate activities. The
“Code of Conduct” sets out the principles, practices, and standards of personal behaviour the Company expects
people to adopt in their daily business activities.

All Directors, officers and employees are required to comply with the Code of Conduct. Senior managers are
expected to ensure that employees, contractors, consultants, agents and partners under their supervision are
aware of the Company’s expectations as set out in the Code of Conduct.
All Directors, officers and employees are expected to:

a) comply with the law;

b) actin the best interests of the Company;

c) be responsible and accountable for their actions; and

d) observe the ethical principles of fairness, honesty and truthfulness, including prompt disclosure of
potential conflicts.

Policy concerning trading in Company securities

Company policy prohibits Directors and Company officers dealing in Company shares while in possession of
price sensitive information. As a matter of practice, Company shares may only be dealt with under the
following guidelines:

e No trading is permitted two days before and two days after an announcement to the ASX.

e Guidelines are to be considered complementary to and not replace the various sections of the
Corporations Act 2001 dealing with insider trading; and

e  Prior approval of the Executive Chairman is required prior to any trading being undertaken. If it is the
Chairman who wishes to trade, prior approval must be sought from the Board of Directors.
TIMELY AND BALANCED DISCLOSURE
Shareholder communication

Pursuant to Principle 6, The Company’s objective is to promote effective communication with its shareholders
at all times.

Kingsrose Mining Limited is committed to:

e  Ensuring that shareholders and the financial markets are provided with full and timely information
e about the Company’s activities in a balanced and understandable way.

e  Complying with continuous disclosure obligations contained in applicable the ASX listing rules and the
Corporations Act in Australia.
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e Communicating effectively with its shareholders and making it easier for shareholders to communicate
with Kingsrose Mining Limited.

To promote effective communication with shareholders and encourage effective participation at general
meetings, information is communicated to shareholders:

e Through the release of information to the market via the ASX.

e Through the distribution of the annual report and Notices of Annual General Meeting.

e Through shareholder meetings and investor relations presentations.

e Through letters and other forms of communications directly to shareholders.

e By posting relevant information on the Company’s website www.kingsrosemining.com.au

The Company’s website has a dedicated Investor Relations section and for the purpose of publishing all
important Company information and relevant announcements made to the market.

The external auditors are required to attend the Annual General Meeting and are available to answer any
shareholder questions about the conduction of the audit and preparation of the audit report.

Continuous disclosure policy

The Company is committed to ensuring that shareholders and the market are provided with full and timely
information and that all stakeholders have equal opportunities to receive externally available information
issued by the Company. The Company’s “ASX Disclosure Policy” described in 5(a) reinforces the Company’s
commitment to continuous disclosure and outline management’s accountabilities and the processes to be
followed for ensuring compliance.

The policy also contains guidelines on information that may be price sensitive. The Company Secretary has
been nominated as the person responsible for communications with the ASX. This role includes responsibility
for ensuring compliance with the continuous disclosure requirements with the ASX Listing Rules and overseeing
and coordinating information disclosure to the ASX.

RECOGNISING AND MANAGING RISK

The Board is responsible for ensuring there are adequate policies in relation to risk management, compliance
and internal control systems. The Company’s policies are designed to ensure strategic, operational, legal,
reputation and financial risks are identified, assessed, effectively and efficiently managed and monitored to
enable achievement of the Company’s business objectives. A written policy in relation to risk oversight and
management is being established (“Risk Management and Internal Control Policy”). Considerable importance is
placed on maintaining a strong control environment.

Board oversight of the risk management system

The Board is responsible for approving and overseeing the risk management system. The Board reviews, at
least annually, the effectiveness of the implementation of the risk management controls and procedures.

The principle aim of the system of internal control is the management of business risks, with a view to
enhancing the value of shareholders' investments and safeguarding assets. Although no system of internal
control can provide absolute assurance that the business risks will be fully mitigated, the internal control
systems have been designed to meet the Company's specific needs and the risks to which it is exposed.

Annually, the Board is responsible for identifying the risks facing the Company, assessing the risks and ensuring
that there are controls for these risks, which are to be designed to ensure that any identified risk is reduced to
an acceptable level.

The Board is also responsible for identifying and monitoring areas of significant business risk. Internal control
measures currently adopted by the Board include:
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monthly reporting to the Board in respect of operations and the Company’s financial position, with a
comparison of actual results against budget; and

regular reports to the Board by appropriate members of the management team and/or independent
advisers, outlining the nature of particular risks and highlighting measures which are either in place or
can be adopted to manage or mitigate those risks.

6(b) Risk management roles and responsibilities

The Board is responsible for approving and reviewing the Company’s risk management strategy and policy.
Executive management is responsible for implementing the Board approved risk management strategy and
developing policies, controls, processes and procedures to identify and manage risks in all of the Company’s
activities.

The Board is responsible for satisfying itself that management has developed and implemented a sound system
of risk management and internal control.

6(c) Finance Director

The Finance Director provides to the Board written certification that in all material respects:

The Company’s financial statements present a true and fair view of the Company’s financial condition
and operational results and are in accordance with relevant accounting standards;

The statement given to the Board on the integrity of the Company’s financial statements is founded on
a sound system of risk management and internal compliance and controls which implements the
policies adopted by the Board; and

The Company’s risk management an internal compliance and control system is operating efficiently
and effectively in all material respects.

6(d) Internal review and risk evaluation

Assurance is provided to the Board by executive management on the adequacy and effectiveness of
management controls for risk on a regular basis.
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Note
Continuing operations
Revenue 6(a)
Cost of sales 6(c)
Gross (loss)/profit
Other income/losses 6(b)
Impairment of goodwill on acquisition 28
Impairment loss on mine properties and
development costs 13
Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment 12
Impairment loss on loan to subsidiary 16
Impairment loss on investment in subsidiary 15
Administration 6(d)
Finance costs 6(e)
(Loss) before income tax
Income tax benefit/(expense) 7
(Loss) after income tax
Attributable to Minority Interest 35
Members of parent entity
Basic (loss) per share — cents per share 8
Diluted (loss) per share — cents per share 8

The above income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Consolidated Parent
2009 2009 2008
S S $
4,171,002 4,171,002 1,287,125
(5,111,322) (5,104,648) (2,282,479)
(940,320) (933,646) (995,354)
134,694 213,985 180,776
- - (3,478,134)
- - (3,487,972)
- - (896,969)
- (3,674,280) -
- (359,120) -
(4,684,469) (2,912,198) (2,526,304)
(72,267) (72,267) (159,099)
(5,562,362) (7,737,526) (11,363,056)
(5,562,362) (7,737,526) (11,363,056)
(5,562,362)
(5.36) (17.35)
(5.36) (17.35)
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Consolidated Parent
Note 2009 2009 2008
$ $ $
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 15,607,040 15,494,229 3,140,620
Trade and other receivables 10 365,321 156,572 77,225
Inventories 11 1,131,794 618,112 529,308
Total Current Assets 17,104,155 16,268,913 3,747,153
Non-Current Assets
Plant and equipment 12 2,457,885 845,700 745,543
Mine properties and development 13 13,948,058 - -
Other assets 14 - - 443,863
Investment in subsidiary 15 - 9,263,537 -
Interest-bearing receivable from subsidiary 16 - - -
Total Non-Current Assets 16,405,943 10,109,237 1,189,406
TOTAL ASSETS 33,510,098 26,378,150 4,936,559
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 17 1,257,137 796,255 689,292
Interest-bearing liabilities 18 125,626 122,475 93,098
Non-interest bearing loans 20 6,414,462 99,990 -
Provisions 22 61,387 61,387 96,707
Total Current Liabilities 7,858,612 1,080,107 879,097
Non-current Liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities 19 - - 228,975
Non interest-bearing loans 21 - - 99,990
Provisions 23 376,437 100,000 100,000
Other payables 24 77,006 - -
Total Non-Current Liabilities 453,443 100,000 428,965
TOTAL LIABILITIES 8,312,055 1,180,107 1,308,062
NET ASSETS 25,198,043 25,198,043 3,628,497
EQUITY
Equity attributable to equity holders
of the parent
Contributed equity 25 40,567,560 40,567,560 12,507,946
Reserves 26 1,555,901 3,731,065 2,483,607
Accumulated losses 27 (16,925,418) (19,100,582) (11,363,056)
Parents interest 25,198,043 25,198,043 3,628,497
Minority Interest 35 - - -
TOTAL EQUITY 25,198,043 25,198,043 3,628,497

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Parent
Note 2009 2009 2008
$ $ $
Cash flows used in operating activities
Receipts from customers 4,530,558 4,530,558 1,655,159
Payment to suppliers and employees (8,062,124) (7,494,842) (3,927,160)
Interest received 134,694 134,694 178,734
Interest paid (57,767) (57,767) (11,226)
Net cash flows used in operating activities 37 (3,454,639) (2,887,357) (2,104,493)
Cash flows used in investing activities
Payments for plant and equipment (419,405) (215,308) (446,922)
Payments for mine properties and development (1,645,981) - (233,426)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets (19,909) (19,909) -
Business acquisition costs (737,114) (737,114) (385,543)
Loan to subsidiary - (3,674,280) -
Cash acquired on acquisition 28 45,396 - 356,079
Security bond - - (659)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (2,777,012) (4,646,611) (710,471)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares/options 20,980,675 20,980,675 6,495,734
Share issue costs (1,000,000) (1,000,000) (400,074)
Proceeds from borrowings - - 121,761
Repayment of borrowings (1,180,000) - (31,472)
Repayment of hire purchases (93,098) (93,098) (230,385)
Net cash flows from financing activities 18,707,577 19,887,577 5,955,564
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 12,475,926 12,353,609 3,140,600
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial
year 3,140,620 3,140,620 20
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash held (9,506) - -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial period 5 15,607,040 15,494,229 3,140,620

The above cash flow statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED

At 1 July 2008

Currency translation difference
Income/expense for the year
recognised directly in equity
Loss for the period

Total income/expense for the period

Minority interest arising on
acquisition of subsidiary

Issue of share capital

Share issue cost

Proceeds from issue of options
Share based payments

At 30 June 2009

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

. Accumulated Optl-on Convertible FX Translation Minority
Issued Capital Premium Other Reserve Total Total
Losses Note Reserve Reserve Interest
Reserve
S $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

12,507,946 (11,363,056) 442,167 2,041,440 - - 3,628,497 - -
- - - - (2,175,164) - (2,175,164) - -
- - - - (2,175,164) - (2,175,164) - -
- (5,562,362) - - - - (5,562,362) - -
- (5,562,362) - - (2,175,164) - (7,737,526) - -
29,470,000 - - - - - 29,470,000 - -
(1,000,000) - - - - - (1,000,000) - -
10,675 10,675 -
(410,386) - 1,236,783 - - - 826,397 - -
40,567,560 (16,925,418) 1,689,625 2,041,440 (2,175,164) - 25,198,043 - -
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PARENT

At 1July 2008

Loss for the period

Total income/expense for the period
Issue of share capital

Share issue cost

Proceeds from issue of options

Share based payments

At 30 June 2009

At 1 July 2007

Loss for the period

Total income/expense for the period
Issue of share capital

Share issue cost

Convertible note equity portion
Share based payments

At 30 June 2008

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

Option Premium

Convertible Note

Issued Capital Accumulated Losses Total
Reserve Reserve
$ $ $ $ $
12,507,946 (11,363,056) 442,167 2,041,440 3,628,497
- (7,737,526) - - (7,737,526)
- (7,737,526) - - (7,737,526)
29,470,000 - - - 29,470,000
(1,000,000) - - - (1,000,000)
10,675 10,675
(410,386) - 1,236,783 - 826,397
40,567,560 (19,100,582) 1,689,625 2,041,440 25,198,043
Issued Capital Accumulated Losses Option Premium Convertible Note Total
Reserve Reserve
$ $ $ $ $
20 - - - 20
- (11,363,056) - - (11,363,056)
- (11,363,056) - - (11,363,056)
11,563,000 - - - 11,563,000
(400,074) - - - (400,074)
- - - 2,041,440 2,041,440
1,345,000 - 442,167 - 1,787,167
12,507,946 (11,363,056) 442,167 2,041,440 3,628,497

Page 47



Kingsrose Mining Limited Annual Report
Year ended 30 June 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009
1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The financial report of Kingsrose Mining Limited (the “Company”) and its Controlled Entities (the “Group”) for the year
ended 30 June 2009 was authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 25 September 2009.

Kingsrose Mining Limited is a Company incorporated in Australia and limited by shares which are publicly traded on
the Australian Securities Exchange.

The Company operated solely as a parent entity during the 2008 financial year. Following the acquisition of subsidiary
companies in February 2009, the Company’s financial statements include consolidated and parent figures for the 2009
financial year.

The principal activities of the Group during the financial year were:

e The development and mining of the Comet Vale Mine, Kalgoorlie, in conjunction with Reed Resources
Limited, pursuant to a joint venture arrangement; and

e the acquisition of all the shares of MM Gold Pty Ltd which, through its wholly owned subsidiary Natarang
Offshore Pty Ltd, owns 85% of PT Natarang Mining which holds the Contract of Work for the Way Linggo
Gold Project in Sumatra, Indonesia.

The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Group are described in the Directors’ Report.
The address of the registered office of the Company is Suite 3, 16 Kearns Crescent, Applecross WA 6153.
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The financial report is a general purpose financial report, which has been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, Australian Accounting Standards and other authoritative pronouncements
of the Australian Accounting Standards Board. The financial report has also been prepared on a historical cost basis.

The financial report is presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest dollar unless otherwise
stated.

(a) Significant accounting estimates and assumptions

The carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities are often determined based on estimates and assumptions of
future events. The key estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities within the next annual reporting period are:

(i) Impairment of capitalised mine development expenditure

The future recoverability of capitalised mine development expenditure is dependent on a number of factors,
including the level of proved, probable and inferred mineral resources, future legal changes (including changes to
environmental restoration obligations) and changes to commodity prices.

To the extent that capitalised mine development expenditure is determined not to be recoverable in the future,
profits and net assets will be reduced in the period in which this determination is made.

(ii) Provisions for decommissioning and restoration costs

Decommissioning and restoration costs are a normal consequence of mining and the majority of this expenditure is
incurred at the end of a mine’s life. In determining an appropriate level of provision consideration is given to the
expected future costs to be incurred, the timing of these expected future costs (largely dependent on the life of the
mine), and the estimated future level of inflation.

The ultimate cost of decommissioning and restoration is uncertain and costs can vary in response to many factors
including changes to the relevant legal requirements, the emergence of new restoration techniques or experience at
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other mine sites. The expected timing of expenditure can also change, for example in response to changes in
reserves or to production rates.

Changes to any of the estimates could result in significant changes to the level of provisioning required, which would
in turn impact future financial results.

(iii)  Share-based payments

The Company measures the cost of equity-settled transaction with employees by reference to the fair value of the
equity instruments at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by using a Black & Scholes
based model, with the assumptions detailed in Note 29. The accounting estimates and assumptions relating to
equity-settled share-based payments would have no impact on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next annual report period but may impact expenses and equity.

(iv) Valuation of equity and liability portions of convertible notes

Convertible notes are classified into two components (a contractual arrangement to deliver cash) and an equity call
option component (a call option granting the holder the right, for a specified period of time, to convert it into a
number of ordinary shares of Kingsrose, based on the outstanding balance at date of conversion). Refer to note (v)
for further details.

(v) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The carrying amounts of all non-financial assets are reviewed annually, or when an indicator of impairment exists, to
determine whether there is an indication of impairment. Where an indicator of impairment exists, a formal
estimate of the recoverable amount is made. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
pre-tax discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the
asset.

If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is written down to its recoverable
amount and an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement. Individual assets are grouped together for
impairment purposes at the lowest level for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets of groups of assets (cash generating units — CGUs). Generally, this
results in the Group evaluating its mine properties on a geographical basis.

(b) Compliance with IFRS

The financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

(c) New accounting standards and interpretations

In the current year, the Company has adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (the AASB) and that are relevant to its operations and effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on 1 July 2008. The adoption of these new and revised Standards and Interpretations did
not have any effect on the financial position or performance of the Company.

Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet
effective have not been adopted by the Group for the annual reporting period ending 30 June 2009. These are
outlined in the table below.

A full assessment has not yet been completed of the impact of all the new or amended Accounting Standards and
interpretations issued but not effective.
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Application .
Reference Title Summary date of Application date
for Group
standard
AASB 8 and AASB 2007-3 Operating Segments and New Standard replacing AASB 114 Segment Reporting, which adopts a 1 January 2009 1 July 2009
consequential amendments to management reporting approach to segment reporting.
other Australian Accounting
Standards
AASB 123 (Revised) Borrowing Costs and The amendments to AASB 123 require that all borrowing costs associated 1 January 2009 1 July 2009
and AASB 2007-6 consequential amendments with a qualifying asset be capitalised.
to other Australian
Accounting Standards
AASB 101 (Revised), Presentation of Financial Introduces a statement of comprehensive income. 1 January 2009 1 July 2009
AASB 2007-8 Statements and Other revisions include impacts on the presentation of items in the
and AASB 2007-10 consequential amendments statement of changes in equity, new presentation requirements for
to other Australian restatements or reclassifications of items in the financial statements,
Accounting Standards changes in the presentation requirements for dividends and changes to the
titles of the financial statements.
AASB 2008-1 Amendments to Australian The amendments clarify the definition of “vesting conditions”, introducing 1 January 2009 1 July 2009
Accounting Standard — the term “non-vesting conditions” for conditions other than vesting
Share-based Payments: conditions as specifically defined and prescribe the accounting treatment of
Vesting Conditions and an award that is effectively cancelled because a non-vesting condition is not
Cancellations satisfied.
AASB 3 (Revised) Business Combinations The revised Standard introduces a number of changes to the accounting for 1 July 2009 1 July 2009
business combinations, the most significant of which includes the
requirement to have to expense transaction costs and a choice (for each
business combination entered into) to measure a non-controlling interest
(formerly a minority interest) in the acquiree either at its fair value or at its
proportionate interest in the acquiree’s net assets. This choice will
effectively result in recognising goodwill relating to 100% of the business
(applying the fair value option) or recognising goodwill relating to the
percentage interest acquired. The changes apply prospectively.
AASB 127 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate There are a number of changes arising from the revision to AASB 127 1 July 2009 1 July 2009

Financial Statements

relating to changes in ownership interest in a subsidiary without loss of
control, allocation of losses of a subsidiary and accounting for the loss of
control of a subsidiary. Specifically in relation to a change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary (that does not result in loss of control) — such a
transaction will be accounted for as an equity transaction.
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. Application Application date
Reference Title Summary date of
for Group
standard
AASB 2008-3 Amendments to Australian Amending Standard issued as a consequence of revisions to AASB 3 and AASB 127. 1 July 2009 1 July 2009
Accounting Standards arising from Refer above.
AASB 3 and AASB 127
AASB 2008-5 Amendments to Australian The improvements project is an annual project that provides a mechanism for making 1 January 2009 1 July 2009
Accounting Standards arising from non-urgent, but necessary, amendments to IFRSs. The IASB has separated the
the Annual Improvements Project amendments into two parts: Part 1 deals with changes the IASB identified resulting in
accounting changes; Part Il deals with either terminology or editorial amendments that
the IASB believes will have minimal impact.
This was the first omnibus of amendments issued by the IASB arising from the Annual
Improvements Project and it is expected that going forward, such improvements will be
issued annually to remove inconsistencies and clarify wording in the standards.
The AASB issued these amendments in two separate amending standards; one
dealing with the accounting changes effective from 1 January 2009 and the other
dealing with amendments to AASB 5, which will be applicable from 1 July 2009 [refer
below AASB 2008-6].
AASB 2008-6 Further Amendments to Australian | This was the second omnibus of amendments issued by the IASB arising from the Annual 1 July 2009 1 July 2009
Accounting Standards arising from Improvements Project.
the Annual Improvements Project
Refer to AASB 2008-5 above for more details.
AASB 2008-7 Amendments to Australian The main amendments of relevance to Australian entities are those made to AASB 127 1 January 2009 1 July 2009

Accounting Standards — Cost of an
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly
Controlled Entity or Associate

deleting the “cost method” and requiring all dividends from a subsidiary, jointly controlled
entity or associate to be recognised in profit or loss in an entity's separate financial
statements (i.e., parent company accounts). The distinction between pre- and post-
acquisition profits is no longer required. However, the payment of such dividends requires
the entity to consider whether there is an indicator of impairment.

AASB 127 has also been amended to effectively allow the cost of an investment in a
subsidiary, in limited reorganisations, to be based on the previous carrying amount of
the subsidiary (that is, share of equity) rather than its fair value.
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Application Application date
Reference Title Summary date of
for Group
standard
AASB 2009-2 Amendments to Australian The main amendment to AASB 7 requires fair value measurements to be Annual reporting 1 July 2009
Accounting Standards — disclosed by the source of inputs, using the following three-level hierarchy: periods beginning
Improving Disclosures about quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or on or after 1
Financial Instruments [AASB 4, liabilities (Level 1); January 2009 that
AASB 7, AASB 1023 & AASB inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for end on or after 30
1038] the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from April 2009.
prices) (Level 2); and
inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs) (Level 3).
These amendments arise from the issuance of Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments (Amendments to IFRS 7) by the IASB in March 2009.
The amendments to AASB 4, AASB 1023 and AASB 1038 comprise editorial
changes resulting from the amendments to AASB 7.
AASB 2009-4 Amendments to Australian The amendments to some Standards result in accounting changes for 1 July 2009 1 July 2009

Accounting Standards arising
from the Annual
Improvements Project
[AASB 2 and AASB 138 and
AASB Interpretations 9 & 16]

presentation, recognition or measurement purposes, while some
amendments that relate to terminology and editorial changes are expected
to have no or minimal effect on accounting.

The main amendment of relevance to Australian entities is that made to
IFRIC 16 which allows qualifying hedge instruments to be held by any entity
or entities within the group, including the foreign operation itself, as long as
the designation, documentation and effectiveness requirements in AASB
139 that relate to a net investment hedge are satisfied. More hedging
relationships will be eligible for hedge accounting as a result of the
amendment.

These amendments arise from the issuance of the IASB’s Improvements to
IFRSs. The amendments pertaining to IFRS 5, 8, IAS 1,7, 17, 36 and 39 have
been issued in Australia as AASB 2009-5 (refer below).
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Application Application date
Reference Title Summary date of
for Group
standard
AASB 2009-5 Further Amendments to The amendments to some Standards result in accounting changes for 1 January 2010 1 July 2010
Australian Accounting presentation, recognition or measurement purposes, while some
Standards arising from the amendments that relate to terminology and editorial changes are expected
Annual Improvements to have no or minimal effect on accounting.
Project The main amendment of relevance to Australian entities is that made to
[AASB 5, 8, 101, 107, 117, AASB 117 by removing the specific guidance on classifying land as a lease so
118, 136 & 139] that only the general guidance remains. Assessing land leases based on the
general criteria may result in more land leases being classified as finance
leases and if so, the type of asset which is to be recorded (intangible v
property, plant and equipment) needs to be determined.
These amendments arise from the issuance of the IASB’s Improvements to
IFRSs. The AASB has issued the amendments to IFRS 2, IAS 38, IFRIC 9 as
AASB 2009-4 (refer above).
AASB 2009-7 Amendments to Australian These comprise editorial amendments and are expected to have no major 1 July 2009 1 July 2009
Accounting Standards impact on the requirements of the amended pronouncements.
[AASB 5, 7,107, 112,136 &
139 and Interpretation 17]
Amendments to Amendments to IFRS 2 The amendments clarify the accounting for group cash-settled share-based 1 January 2010 1 July 2010

International Financial
Reporting Standards

|
>

payment transactions, in particular:

the scope of AASB 2; and

the interaction between IFRS 2 and other standards.
An entity that receives goods or services in a share-based payment
arrangement must account for those goods or services no matter which
entity in the Group settles the transaction, and no matter whether the
transaction is settled in shares or cash.
A “group” has the same meaning as in IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements, that is, it includes only a parent and its subsidiaries.
The amendments also incorporate guidance previously included in IFRIC 8
Scope of IFRS 2 and IFRIC 11 IFRS 2—Group and Treasury Share
Transactions. As a result, IFRIC 8 and IFRIC 11 have been withdrawn.
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(d) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Kingsrose Mining Limited and its
Controlled Entities (as outlined in Note 36 as at 30 June each year (the Group)). Interests in associates are equity
accounted and are not part of the consolidated Group. Controlled Entities are consolidated from the date on which
control commences until the date that control ceases.

Controlled Entities are all those entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether a group controls another entity.

The financial statements of the Controlled Entities are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent Company,
using consistent accounting policies.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all intercompany balances and transactions, income and expenses
and profit and losses resulting from intra-group transactions have been eliminated in full.

Investments in Controlled Entities are accounted for at cost in the separate financial statements of the Company less
any impairment charges.

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The purchase method of
accounting involves allocating the cost of the business combination to the fair value of the assets acquired and the
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition.

Minority interests not held by the Group are allocated their share of net profit after tax in the income statement and
are presented within equity in the consolidated balance sheet, separately from parent shareholders' equity.

(e) Business combinations

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. Cost is measured as the fair value of the assets given, shares issued or
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange plus costs directly attributable to the combination. Where
equity instruments are issued in a business combination, the fair value of the instruments is their published market
price as at the date of exchange. Transaction costs arising on the issue of equity instruments are recognised directly in
equity.

Except for non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held for sale (which are measured at fair value less costs
to sell), all identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of the cost of the business combination over
the net fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. If the cost of
acquisition is less than the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable net assets of the subsidiary, the
difference is recognised as a gain in the income statement, but only after a reassessment of the identification and
measurement of the net assets acquired.

Where settlement of any part of the consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to
their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity's incremental borrowing rate, being
the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions

(f) Segment reporting

A business segment is a distinguishable component of the entity that is engaged in providing products or services that
are subject to risks and returns that are different to those of other operating business segments. A geographical
segment is a distinguishable component of the entity that is engaged in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment and is subject to risks and returns that are different than those of segments
operating in other economic environments.

Page 54



Kingsrose Mining Limited Annual Report
Year ended 30 June 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 (cont’d)
(g) Foreign currency translation

(i) Translation of foreign currency transactions

Both the functional and presentation currency of Kingsrose Mining Limited and its Australian subsidiaries are
Australian dollars (S). The Indonesian subsidiary’s functional currency is United States dollars which are translated to
the presentation currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency by applying the exchange rates
ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All exchange differences in the consolidated
financial report are taken to the Income Statement.

(i) Financial reports of foreign operations

The functional currency of PT Natarang Mining is US dollars (USS). The assets and liabilities of controlled entities
incorporated outside Australia with functional currencies other than Australian dollars are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at the rates of exchange ruling at balance date and the Income Statement is
translated at the average exchange rate for the period. Exchange differences arising on translation are taken directly
to the foreign currency translation reserve in equity.

If the Indonesian subsidiary was sold, the proportionate share of exchange differences would be transferred out of
equity and recognised in the income statement.

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are included within interest-bearing loans and
borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

(i) Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables, for which the Group generally had only one at any one time during the reporting period, have 30-60
day terms, are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less an allowance for impairment.

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis at an operating unit level. Individual debts that are
known to be uncollectible are written off when identified. An impairment allowance is recognised when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect the receivable.

Financial difficulties of the debtor, default payments or debts more than 60 days overdue are considered objective
evidence of impairment. The amount of the impairment loss is the receivable carrying amount compared to the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

(j) Inventories

Inventories including raw materials, work in progress and finished goods are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition is accounted for as follows:

Raw materials — purchase cost on a first-in, first-out basis. The cost of purchase comprises the purchase price, import
duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable by the entity from the taxing authorities),
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transport, handling and other costs directly attributable to the acquisition of raw materials. Volume discounts and
rebates are included in determining the cost of purchase.

Finished goods and work-in-progress — cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of variable and fixed
manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned on the basis of weighted average
costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(k) Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts that are eligible for capitalisation when the cost of replacing the
parts is incurred. Similarly, when each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of
the plant and equipment as a replacement only if it is eligible for capitalisation. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on the diminishing value basis over the estimated useful life of the specific assets as follows:

Depreciation rates

Headframe, buildings and property improvements 5% - 10%
Plant and equipment 7% - 20%
Motor Vehicles 18.75%

The assets' residual values, useful lives and amortisation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
financial year end.

De-recognition
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no further future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment if there is any indication that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. Where a review for impairment is conducted, the recoverable amount is assessed by reference to
the higher of ‘value-in-use’ (being the net present value of expected cash flows of the relevant cash generating unit)
and ‘fair value less costs to sell’.

In determining value-in-use, future cash flows are based on:

e a mine plan based on estimates of the quantities of ore reserves and/or mineral resources for which there is a
high degree of confidence of economic extraction;

e future production levels;

e future commodity prices; and

e future cash costs of production.

() Mine Development expenditure

Mine development expenditure represents the costs incurred in preparing mines for production and includes stripping
and waste removal costs incurred before production commences. These costs are capitalised to the extent they are
expected to be recouped through successful exploitation of the related mining leases. Once production commences,
these costs are amortised using the units-of-production method based on the estimated economically recoverable
reserves and/or mineral resources to which they relate or are written off if the mine property is abandoned.
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Impairment
The carrying value of capitalised mine development expenditure is assessed for impairment whenever facts and
circumstances suggests that the carrying amount of the asset may exceed its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of capitalized mine development expenditure is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the
asset.

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. The asset or cash-generating unit is then written down to its recoverable amount. Any impairment losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

(m) Provisions for decommissioning and restoration costs

The Company is required to decommission and rehabilitate mines at the end of their producing lives to a condition
acceptable to the relevant authorities.

The expected cost of any approved decommissioning and rehabilitation program, discounted to its present value, is
provided when the related environmental disturbance occurs. The cost is capitalized when it gives rise to future
benefits, whether the rehabilitation activity is expected to occur over the life the operation or at the time of closure.
The capitalised cost is amortised over the life of the operation and the increase in the net present value of the
provision for the expected cost is included in financing expenses over the life of the mine. Expected decommissioning
and rehabilitation costs are based on the discounted value of the estimated future cost of detailed plans prepared for
each site. Where there is a change in the expected decommissioning and restoration costs, the value of the provision
and any related assets are adjusted and the effect is recognised in profit and loss on a prospective basis over the
remaining life of the operation.

(n) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to any provision is presented in the income statement net of any reimbursement.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the balance sheet date using a discounted cash flow methodology. The risks specific to the
provision are factored into the cash flows and as such a risk-free government bond rate relative to the expected life of
the provision is used as a discount rate. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted
using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in
the provision resulting from the passage of time is recognised in finance costs.

(o) Employee Benefits

Employee leave benefits

(i) Wages, salaries, annual leave and sick leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave expected
to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the
reporting date. They are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Expenses for
non-accumulating sick leave are recognised when the leave is taken and are measured at the rates paid or payable.
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(ii) Long service leave

The liability for long service leave is recognised and measured as the present value of expected future payments to be
made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date using the projected unit credit method.
Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures, and periods of
service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national government
bonds with terms to maturity and currencies that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

(p) Interest in jointly controlled operation

The Group has an interest in a joint venture that is a jointly controlled operation. A joint venture is a contractual
arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint control. A jointly
controlled operation involves use of assets and other resources of the venturers rather than establishment of a
separate entity. The Group recognises its interest in the jointly controlled operation by recognising its interest in the
assets and the liabilities of the joint venture. The Group also recognises the expenses that it incurs and its share of the
income that it earns from the sale of goods by the jointly controlled operation.

(q) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are carried at amortised cost. Due to their short term nature they are not discounted. They
represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid
and arise when the Group becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of these goods and
services. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

(r) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less directly
attributable transaction costs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities that are yield related are included as part
of the carrying amount of the loans and borrowings.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense when incurred. When the Group holds qualifying assets, the borrowing
costs directly associated with these assets would be capitalised (including any other associated costs directly
attributable to the borrowing and temporary investment income earned on the borrowing).

(s) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset
or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the
leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction
of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are recognised as an expense in profit or loss.

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term
if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.
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Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income statement on a straight line basis over the
lease term. Operating lease incentives are recognised as a liability when received and subsequently reduced by
allocating lease payments between rental expense and reduction of the facility.

(t) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable to the extent it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The
following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership in the product have
passed to the buyer and can be reliably measured.

Interest revenue
Revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method.

(u) Share-based payment transactions

The Company provides benefits to its employees (including KMP) in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services in exchange for shares or rights over shares (equity-settled transactions). The Company
also makes share-based payments to consultants, contractors and advisors, whereby those parties render services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares, granted at the sole discretion of the Company (equity-settled transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with non-employees is measured by reference to the fair value of the goods
and services received unless this cannot be reliably measured, in which case these are measured at the fair value of
the equity instruments granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined using a Black & Scholes based model,
further details of which are provided in Note 29. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any
vesting conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the shares of the Company (market conditions) if
applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period
in which the performance and/ or service conditions are fulfilled (the vesting period), ending on the date on which the
recipient relevant employees becomes fully entitled to the award (vesting date).

At each subsequent reporting date until vesting, the cumulative charge to the Income Statement is the product of:

(i) The grant date fair value of the award.
(ii) The current best estimate of the number of awards that will vest.
(iii) The expired portion of the vesting period.

The charge to the Income Statement for the period is the cumulative amount as calculated above less the amounts
already charged in the previous periods. There is a corresponding entry to equity.

Until an award has vested, any amounts recorded are contingent and will be adjusted if more or fewer awards vest
than were originally anticipated to do so. Any award subject to a market condition is considered to vest irrespective of
whether or not that market condition is fulfilled, provided that all other conditions are satisfied.

If the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee, as measured at the date of
modification.
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If an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new award are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect, if any, of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted
earnings per share (see Note 8).

(v) Convertible notes

The component of the convertible notes that exhibits characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in the
balance sheet, net of transaction costs.

On issuance of the convertible notes, the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market rate for an
equivalent non-convertible bond and this amount is carried as a long-term liability on the amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The increase in the liability due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included in shareholder’s
equity, net of transactions costs. The carrying amount of the conversion options is not re-measured in subsequent
years.

Interest on the liability component of the instruments is recognised as an expense in profit or loss.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible notes based on the
allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the instruments are first recognised.

(w) Contributed equity

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(x) Income tax and other taxes

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based on the current period's taxable income. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax is provided on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred income tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences except:

o When the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

e When the taxable temporary difference is associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates or interests
in joint ventures and the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and the carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized,
except:
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e When the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

e When the deductible temporary difference is associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates or
interests in joint ventures, in which case a deferred tax asset is only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income
tax asset to be utilized.

Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the ear when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Tax consolidation legislation
The Company and its wholly-owned Australian controlled entities will implement the tax consolidation legislation as of
28 February 2009.

The Company and the Controlled Entities in the tax consolidated group continue to account for their own current and
deferred tax amounts. The Group has applied the separate taxpayer within group approach in determining the
appropriate amount of current taxes and deferred taxes to allocate to members of the tax consolidated group.

The Company and the Controlled Entities in the consolidated group have not entered into a tax funding arrangement
or a tax sharing agreement.

Other taxes
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except:

e When the GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in
which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item
as applicable;

e  Receivables and payables, which are stated with the amount of GST included

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the balance sheet.

Cash flows are included in the Cash Flow Statement on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows
arising from investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
classified as part of operating cash flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority.
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(y) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated as net profit attributable to members of the Company, adjusted to exclude any
costs of servicing equity (other than dividends), divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares, adjusted
for any bonus element.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated as net profit attributable to members of the Company, adjusted for:

e  Costs of servicing equity (other than dividends)

e The after tax effect of dividends and interest associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares that
have been recognised as expenses

e Other non-discretionary changes in revenues or expenses during the period that would result from the
dilution of potential ordinary shares, divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares and dilutive
potential ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus element.

(z) Goodwill and intangibles

Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities. The acquisition of the Way Linggo Gold Project resulted in no goodwill being recognised.
Intangibles

Intangible assets acquired separately or in a business combination are initially measured at cost. The cost of an
intangible asset acquired in a business combination is its fair value as at the date of acquisition.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise receivables, payables, convertible notes, finance leases, cash and
short-term deposits.

The Group manages its exposure to key financial risks, including interest rate and currency risk in accordance with the
Group’s financial risk management policy. The objective of the policy is to support the delivery of the Group’s financial
targets whilst protecting future financial security.

The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks as summarised below.

Primary responsibility for identification and control of financial risks rests with the Board of Directors because, due to
the size of the Company, there is currently no financial risk management committee.

Risk exposures and responses

(a) Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to market interest rates relates to the Group's cash holdings.

At balance date, the Group had the following mix of financial assets and liabilities exposed to Australian variable
interest rate risk:

Page 62



Kingsrose Mining Limited Annual Report
Year ended 30 June 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 (cont’d)

Consolidated Parent
2009 2009 2008
$ $ $

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 15,607,040 15,494,229 3,140,620
Financial liabilities

Interest bearing liabilities 3,151 - 322,073
Net exposure 15,603,889 15,494,229 2,818,547

The Group’s exposure to risks of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s cash balances. The
Company constantly analyses its interest rate exposure. Within this analysis consideration is given to potential renewals
of existing positions and the mix of fixed and variable interest rates. The following sensitivity analysis is based on the
interest rate risk exposures in existence at the balance sheet date. The 3% increase and 1% decrease in rates is based
on reasonably expected possible changes over a financial year, using the observed range of historical rates for the

preceding five year period with an emphasis on rates observed during the past year as a result of the global financial
crisis.

At 30 June 2009, if interest rates had moved, as illustrated in the table below, with all other variables held constant,
post tax losses and equity would have been affected as follows:

Post tax profit Equity
higher/(lower) higher/(lower)
2009 2008 2009 2008
$ $ $ $
Judgements of reasonably
possible movements:
Consolidated
+3.0% (300 basis points) 327,682 - 327,682 -
-1.0% (100 basis points) (109,227) - (109,227) -
Parent
+3.0% (300 basis points) (2008: +1%) 325,379 16,187 325,379 16,187
-1.0% (100 basis points) (2008: -0.5%) (108,460) (8,093) (108,460) (8,093)

The Group was more sensitive to interest rate movements in 2009 than in the previous year due primarily to the
increase in cash holdings. The sensitivity movement percentages were increased in 2009 to reflect the heightened
levels of financial instability and resultant large movements in market interest rates during the reporting period.

(b) Foreign currency risk

As a result of significant operations in Indonesia and large purchases of goods and services denominated in Rupiah and
United States Dollars, the Group's balance sheet can be affected significantly by movements in the Rupiah/AS and
USS/AS exchange rates. The Group seeks to mitigate the effect of its foreign currency exposure by actively monitoring
foreign exchange movements and their impact on the Group’s budgeted future cash flows and future net asset
positions denominated in foreign currencies.
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The Company’s gold sales from the Comet Vale Project located in Western Australia are executed in AS whereby the
gold ounces are priced in USS but automatically overlaid by the buyer with a foreign exchange transaction resulting in

the Company receiving an equivalent AS gold price.

At 30 June 2009, the Group had the following exposure to USS foreign currency:

Consolidated Parent Parent
2009 2009 2008
usD IDR usD IDR usD IDR
'000 '000 '000
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 90,909 37,637 - - - -
90,909 37,637 - - -
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables (312,452) (1,513,643) - - - -
Interest bearing loans and
borrowings - - - - - -
(312,452) (1,513,643) - - - -
Net exposure (221,543) (1,476,006) - - - -

The following sensitivity is based on the foreign currency risk exposures in existence at the balance sheet date:

At 30 June 2009, had the Australian Dollar moved, as illustrated in the table below, with all other variables held
constant, post tax profit and equity would have been affected as follows:

Post tax profit Equity
higher/(lower) higher/(lower)
2009 2008 2009 2008

Judgements of reasonably
possible movements:
Consolidated
AUD/US Dollar + 10% (15,508) - (15,508) -
AUD/US Dollar - 10% 15,508 - 15,508 -
AUD/IDR Rupiah + 10% (103,320) - (103,320) -
AUD/IDR Rupiah - 10% 103,320 - 103,320 -

Parent
AUD/US Dollar + 10% - - - .
AUD/US Dollar - 10% - - - -

The movements in profit in 2009 are more sensitive than in 2008 due to the higher level of US Dollar and Rupiah cash
and payables at balance date.

Significant assumptions used in the foreign currency exposure sensitivity analysis include:

e Reasonably possible movements in foreign exchange rates were determined based on a review of the last two
years historical movements and economic forecaster’s expectations.
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e The reasonably possible movement of 10% was calculated by taking the USD spot rate as at balance date,
moving this spot rate by 10% and then re-converting the USD into AUD with the “new spot-rate”. This
methodology reflects the translation methodology undertaken by the Group.

e The translation of the net assets in subsidiaries with a functional currency other than AUD has not been
included in the sensitivity analysis as part of the equity movement.

e The net exposure at balance date is representative of what the Group was and is expecting to be exposed to in
the next twelve months from balance date.

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the financial liabilities of the Group and the Group’s subsequent ability to meet their
obligations to repay their financial liabilities as and when they fall due.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
overdrafts, bank loans, finance leases and committed available credit lines.

The table below reflects all contractually fixed pay-offs and receivables for settlement, repayments and interest
resulting from recognised financial liabilities. The respective undiscounted cash flows for the respective upcoming fiscal
years are presented. Cash flows for financial assets and liabilities without fixed amounts or timing are based on the
conditions existing at 30 June 2009.

The risk implied from the values shown in the table below, reflects a balanced view of cash inflows and outflows.
Trade payables and other financial liabilities mainly originate from the financing of assets used in our ongoing
operations such as property, plant, equipment and investments of working capital e.g. inventories and trade
receivables.

To monitor existing financial assets and liabilities as well as to enable effective controlling of future risks, the Group
monitors its expected settlement of financial assets and liabilities on an ongoing basis. The following table reflects all
contractually fixed pay-offs and receivables for settlement, repayment and interest resulting from recognised financial
assets and liabilities. The contractual maturity for liabilities represents undiscounted gross amounts.

2009 < 6 months 6-12 1-5 years > 5 years Total
$ $ $ $ $
Consolidated
Financial assets
Cash and equivalents 15,607,040 - - - 15,607,040
Trade and other receivables 365,321 - - - 365,321

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables (1,257,137) - - - (1,257,137)
Interest-bearing liabilities - (135,151) - - (135,151)
Non-interest bearing loan (99,990) (6,314,472) - - (6,414,462)
Net Maturity 14,615,234 (6,449,623) - - 8,165,611

Page 65



Kingsrose Mining Limited Annual Report
Year ended 30 June 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 (cont’d)

2009 < 6 months 6-12 1-5 years > 5 years Total
$ $ $ $ $
Parent
Financial assets
Cash and equivalents 15,494,229 - - - 15,494,229
Trade and other receivables 156,572 - - - 156,572
Interest-bearing receivable - - - -
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (796,255) - - - (796,255)
Interest-bearing liabilities - (132,000) - - (132,000)
Non-interest bearing loan (99,990) - - - (99,990)
Net Maturity 14,754,556 (132,000) - - 14,622,556
2008 < 6 months 6-12 1-5 years > 5 years Total
$ $ $ $ $
Parent
Financial assets
Cash and equivalents 3,140,610 - - 3,140,610
Trade and other receivables 77,225 - - 77,225
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (713,096) - (713,096)
Interest-bearing liabilities (66,000) (132,012) (165,006) (363,018)
Non-interest bearing loan - - (99,990) - (99,990)
Net Maturity 2,438,739 (132,012) (165,006) - 2,141,721

(d) Credit risk exposure

Credit risk arises from the financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other receivables. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from potential default of the counter party, with the
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments. The carrying amount of financial assets
included in the Balance Sheet represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to those assets.

The Group does not hold any credit derivatives to offset its credit exposure. The Group trades only with recognised,
credit worthy third parties and as such collateral is not requested nor is it the Group’s policy to securitise its trade and
other receivables. Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group does not
have a significant exposure to bad debts.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group except for cash held with National Australia
Bank.

Cash

The Group’s primary banker is National Australia Bank. The Board considers this use of this financial institution, which
has a rating of AA/A-1+ from Standards and Poor’s, to be sufficient in the management of credit risk with regards to
these funds.
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All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are
recognised at amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair values unless otherwise stated in the

applicable notes.

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's primary segment reporting format is information that is reported geographically as the Group’s risk and

rates of return are affected predominantly by the location of the mine projects.

The operating businesses are

organised and managed separately according to their geographical location, namely in Australia and Indonesia.

The following table presents revenue and profit information and certain asset and liability information regarding
business segments for the years ended 30 June 2009 and 30 June 2008.

Year ended 30 June 2009 Australia Indonesia Total
$ $ $

Segment revenue 4,171,002 - 4,171,002
Segment result (3,783,418) (1,778,944) (5,562,362)
Other segment information

Segment assets 16,990,973 16,519,125 33,510,098
Segment liabilities 1,186,342 7,125,713 8,312,055
Capital expenditure 215,308 1,441,883 1,657,191
Depreciation 143,667 7,528 151,195
Share-based payments 826,397 - 826,397
Year ended 30 June 2008 Australia Indonesia Total

$ $ $

Segment revenue 1,287,125 - 1,287,125
Segment result (3,499,981) - (3,499,981)
Other segment information

Segment assets 4,936,560 - 4,936,560
Segment liabilities 1,308,062 - 1,308,062
Capital expenditure 446,922 - 446,922
Depreciation 4,527 - 4,527
Share-based payments 1,604,800 - 1,604,800
Impairment of goodwill on acquisition (3,478,134) - (3,478,134)
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5. CURRENT ASSETS - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank and on hand and deposits at call earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The
carrying amounts or cash and cash equivalents represent their fair value. Short terms deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group and

earns interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents are comprised of the following:

Consolidated Parent
2009 2009 2008
$ $ $
Cash at bank and in hand 15,607,040 15,494,229 643,394
Short-term deposit - - 2,497,226
15,607,040 15,494,229 3,140,620
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6. REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Consolidated Parent
Note
2009 2009 2008
$ $ $

(a) Revenue
Revenue from sale of gold 1,075,438 1,075,438 1,287,125
Revenue from sale of ore 3,095,564 3,095,564 -
Total Revenue 4,171,002 4,171,002 1,287,125
(b) Other Income/(Losses)
Interest 134,694 213,985 180,776
Total other income 134,694 213,985 180,776
(c) Cost of sales
Employee benefits expense
Salaries and wages 2,585,746 2,589,820 1,320,249
Superannuation expense 147,252 147,252 70,975
Other employee benefits expense 112,387 108,313 -

2,845,385 2,845,385 1,391,224
Other expenses
Depreciation 150,342 143,668 91,539
Other cash costs 2,115,595 2,115,595 799,716

2,265,937 2,259,263 891,255
Total cost of sales 5,111,322 5,104,648 2,282,479
(d) Administration expenses
Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages expense and other employee benefits 328,258 285,285 333,463
Share-based payments 826,397 826,397 1,604,800
Directors fees and other benefits 608,035 530,463 236,015

1,762,690 1,642,145 2,174,278
Other expenses
Project evaluation costs written off - - 51,301
Consulting expense 426,617 413,777 119,268
Depreciation expense 853 - 4,527
Administration costs 1,000,208 851,380 176,930
Exchange gain/(loss) 1,489,205 - -
Profit/(loss) on sale of asset 4,896 4,896 -
Total administration expenses 4,684,469 2,912,198 2,526,304
(e) Finance costs
Interest 57,767 57,767 147,415
Interest on convertible notes 14,500 14,500 11,684
Total finance costs 72,267 72,267 159,099
(f) Employee benefits expense
Total employee benefits expense 4,608,075 4,487,530 3,565,502
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7. INCOME TAX

Consolidated Parent
2009 2009 2008
S S S

(a) Income tax expense

The components of income tax expense are:

Income Statement

Current income tax

Current income tax benefit - - -

Deferred income tax
Relating to origination of temporary differences - - -

Income tax expense/(benefit) reported in income statement - - -

(b) Amounts charged or credited directly to equity

Deferred income tax related to items charged (credited) directly

to equity

Income tax expense reported in equity - - -

(c) Numerical reconciliation of accounting profit/(loss) to tax
expense

A reconciliation between tax expense and the accounting loss
before income tax multiplied by the entity’s applicable income
tax rate is as follows:

Accounting loss before income tax (5,562,362) (7,737,526) (11,363,056)
At the entity's statutory income tax rate of 30% (2008: 30%) (1,135,025) (2,321,258) (3,408,917)
At the entity's Indonesian statutory income tax rate of 35% (622,631) - -
Non assessable income - (23,787) -
Non-deductible expenditure 42,737 42,737 99,043
Goodwill written off - - 1,030,367
Share based payments - - 403,500
Option valuation 248,270 248,270 77,940
Impairment of loan to subsidiary - 1,102,284 -
Impairment of investment in subsidiary - 107,736 -
Foreign subsidiary loss (84,004) (84,004) -
Deductible capital raising costs in equity - (118,931) -
Prior year tax losses assumed from subsidiaries - (44,080) -
Over-provision in prior year (1,094,446) - -
Income tax benefit not recognised 2,645,099 1,091,033 1,798,067
Aggregate income tax expense/(benefit) - - -
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Consolidated Parent
(d) Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities 2009 2009 2008
Deferred tax balances $ S $
Taxable and deductible temporary differences arise from the
following:
Deferred tax assets:
Provisions 87,612 87,612 69,286
Plant and equipment 186,309 186,309 192,249
Mine development 195,336 195,336 871,993
Capital raising expenses 10,339 10,339 13,786
Listing costs - - 96,017
Losses available for offset against future taxable income 2,479,132 2,479,132 674,757
Provisions of Indonesian subsidiary 46,092 - -
Indonesian losses available for offset against future taxable
income 1,676,184 - -
Deferred tax liabilities: - - -
Accrued income (9,627) (9,627) -

Unrecognised net deferred tax asset (4,671,377) (2,949,101) (1,918,088)

(e) Tax losses

The company and consolidated group has Australian carried forward tax losses of $8,263,773 (tax effected at 30%,
$2,479,132) as at 30 June 2009. The consolidated group holds an 85% interest in an Indonesian subsidiary company
which has Indonesian carried forward tax losses of $4,789,096 (tax effected at 35%, $1,676,183) as at 30 June 2009. In
view of the Company/Group's trading position, the Directors have not included this tax benefit in the Company/
Group's balance sheet. A tax benefit will only be recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

e Unrecognised temporary differences

At 30 June 2009, there are no unrecognised temporary differences associated with the Group’s investments in
subsidiaries, associate or joint venture, as the Group has no liability for additional taxation should unremitted
earnings be remitted (2008:$nil).

e Tax consolidation legislation

The Company and its wholly-owned Australian controlled entities implemented the tax consolidation legislation as of
28 February 2009. The Company and the Controlled Entities in the tax consolidated group continue to account for
their own current and deferred tax amounts. The Group has applied the separate taxpayer within group approach in
determining the appropriate amount of current taxes and deferred taxes to allocate to members of the tax
consolidated group.

The Company and the Controlled Entities in the consolidated group have not entered into a tax funding arrangement
or a tax sharing agreement.

8. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share amounts are calculated by dividing net loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net loss attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus
the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
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The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and dilutive earnings per share computations.

Consolidated Parent
2009 2008

(a) Earnings per share S S
Basic EPS (cents) (5.36) (17.35)
Diluted EPS (cents) (5.36) (17.35)
The following reflects the income used in the calculation of
basic and diluted EPS:
Net loss from continuing operations attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent (5,562,362) (7,737,526) (11,363,056)
Net loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent (5,562,362) (7,737,526) (11,363,056)
(b) Weighted average number of shares No. of shares No. of shares No. of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (excluding
reserved shares) for basic earnings per share* 103,706,710 103,706,710 65,508,957

* adjusted for the effect of convertible notes

At year end the Company had on issue 14,250,000 (2008: 5,500,000) unlisted share options and 38,525,010,
(2008: 36,525,010) listed share options that are excluded from the calculation of diluted loss per share because
they are anti-dilutive as their inclusion reduces the loss per share.

There have been no transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares that would significantly
change the number of ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares outstanding between the reporting date
and the date of completion of these financial statements with the exception of the following options which
have been allotted between these two periods:

e 1,500,000 unlisted options at an exercise price of $0.39 each, exercisable on or before 13 July 2014.
e 1,000,000 unlisted options at an exercise price of $0.48 each, exercisable on or before 28 July 2014.

(c) Information on the classification of securities

(i) Options

Options granted to employees as described in Note 25 are considered to be potential ordinary shares and have
not been included in the determination of diluted earnings per share to the extent they are dilutive.

(ii) Convertible Notes

The convertible notes as described in Note 29 are considered to be potential ordinary shares and have been
included in the determination of basic and diluted earnings per share.

9. DIVIDENDS PAID AND PROPOSED
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No dividends have been paid, declared or recommended by the Company during the year.

10. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CURRENT)

Consolidated Parent
2009 2009 2008
$ $ $
Trade receivables - - 659
Other debtors 365,321 156,572 76,566
365,321 156,572 77,225

Trade receivables and other debtors are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-90 day terms. The carrying
amounts disclosed above represent the fair values. There were no past due or impaired receivables at the 2009 year

end. (2008:SNil).
(b) Fair value and credit risk
Due to the short term nature of these receivables, their carrying value is assumed to approximate their fair value.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is the fair value of receivables. Collateral is not held as security, nor is it the
Group’s policy to transfer (on-sell) receivables to special purpose entities.

(c) Foreign exchange and interest rate risk

Detail regarding foreign exchange and interest rate risk exposure is disclosed in note 3.

11. INVENTORIES (CURRENT)

Consolidated Parent
2009 2009 2008
$ $ $
Ore stocks at cost 988,916 515,756 -
Ore stocks at net realisable value - - 494,906
Stores and spares at cost 142,878 102,356 34,402
Total inventories at lower of cost and net realisable value 1,131,794 618,112 529,308

Inventory write down recognised as an expense totalled S$Nil, (2008: $325,279) for the Group.
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12.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (NON-CURRENT)

Consolidated Parent
30 June 30 June 30 June
2009 2009 2008
$ $ $
Property, plant and equipment
At cost or fair value 2,798,805 1,071,636 1,738,578
Accumulated depreciation (340,920) (225,936) (96,066)
Impairment - - (896,969)
Net carrying amount 2,457,885 845,700 745,543
Movement in property, plant and equipment
At 1 July 2008 net of accumulated depreciation and
impairment 745,543 745,543 -
Acquisition of business (refer Note 28) 2,065,212 - 1,291,656
Additions 472,726 268,631 446,921
Disposals (24,805) (24,805) -
Depreciation (151,195) (143,669) (96,065)
Foreign exchange translation loss (649,596) - -
Impairment - - (896,969)
At 30 June 2009 net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment 2,457,885 845,700 745,543

The impairment loss in 2008 was $896,969 which represents the write-down of the Comet Vale Mine property, plant
and equipment following an assessment of the recoverable amount within the project as a result of higher than
expected unit costs of tonnes produced. The recoverable amount was determined based on fair value less costs to sell
and was determined at the cash-generating unit level, being the Comet Vale Mine assets.

The carrying value of plant and equipment held under a chattel mortgage contract at 30 June 2009 is SNil.
(2008:5100,657).

This asset is pledged as security for the related chattel mortgage contract (refer to Note 18).
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13. MINE PROPERTIES AND DEVELOPMENT (NON-CURRENT)

Consolidated Parent
30 June 30June 30 June
2009 2009 2008
$ $ $
Mine properties and development
At cost or fair value 17,436,030 3,487,972 3,487,972
Impairment (3,487,972) (3,487,972) (3,487,972)
Net carrying amount 13,948,058 - -
Movement in mine properties and development
At 1 July 2008 net of accumulated depreciation and
impairment - B B
Acquisition of business (refer Note 28) 16,100,708 - 3,254,546
Additions 1,286,368 - 233,426
Amortisation - - -
Unwinding of rehabilitation asset present value 11,183 - -
Impairment - - (3,487,972)
Foreign exchange translation loss (3,450,701) - -
At 30 June 2009 net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment 13,948,058 - -
Total mine property and development 13,948,058 . .

No impairment losses were incurred in the reporting period. The impairment loss of $3,487,972 recorded in the
previous year represents the write-down of the Comet Vale Mine properties and development costs, following an
assessment of the recoverable amount within that project as a result of higher than expected unit costs of tonnes
produced. The recoverable amount was based on value in use and was determined at the cash-generating unit level,
being the Comet Vale mine assets.

14. OTHER ASSETS (NON-CURRENT)

Consolidated Parent
2009 2009 2008
$ $ S
Deposits paid on plantand equipment - - 58,321
Pre-acquisition costs - - 385,543

- - 443,864

The Pre-acquisition costs relate to the Way Linggo project in South Sumatra, Indonesia. These costs included
professional fees incurred on geological reports, project viability reports, investigating tax accountant’s reports and
legal services. These costs now form part of the purchase cost of the business combination of the Way Linggo Gold
Project, acquired in February 2009.
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY (NON-CURRENT)
Consolidated Parent
2009 2009 2008
S S S
Investment in subsidiary - 9,622,657 -
Allowance for impairment - (359,120) -
- 9,263,537 -

Refer to Note 28 (Business Combination) for further information.

16. INTEREST BEARING RECEIVABLE FROM SUBSIDIARY (NON-CURRENT)

The Company provides funding to its Controlled Entities. The funds are advanced and repayable in accordance with
various loan agreements entered into between the Company and its Controlled Entities. Interest accrues at a rate of
10% per annum on the daily outstanding balance of the loan between the Company and the subsidiary Natarang
Offshore Pty Ltd (“NOPL”). Funds advanced to NOPL are automatically on-lent to PT Natarang Mining (“PTNM”").
Whilst the Company can demand repayment from NOPL upon notice, which in turn would make demand against
PTNM, the latter is not expected to be in a position to make such repayments within one year from 30 June 2009.

Consolidated Parent
2009 2009 2008
$ S S
Loan to subsidiary - 3,674,280 -
Allowance for impairment - (3,674,280) -
17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CURRENT)
Consolidated Parent
30 June 30June 30 June
2009 2009 2008
S $ S
Trade creditors (a) 327,041 327,041 363,098
Sundry creditors (b) 570,722 156,214 72,648
Accruals (b) 359,374 313,000 253,546
1,257,137 796,255 689,292

(a) The trade creditors are non interest-bearing and generally on 30 day terms.
(b) Sundry creditors are accruals and non interest-bearing and generally on 30 day terms.

Due to the short term nature of these payables, their carrying value approximates their fair value.
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Consolidated Parent
30 June 30June 30 June
2009 2009 2008
$ $ S
Convertible note (refer to Note 26) 122,475 122,475 -
Chattel mortgage (a) - - 93,098
Other 3,151 - -
125,626 122,475 93,098
(a) Represents a chattel mortgage that was paid in full during the year.
19. INTEREST-BEARING LOAN AND BORROWINGS (NON-CURRENT)
Consolidated Parent
30 June 30June 30 June
2009 2009 2008
$ $ S
Convertible Notes - - 228,975
- - 228,975

The carrying amount of the Company’s non-current loans and borrowings approximate their fair value. The difference

between the carrying amount and fair value is immaterial.

20. NON-INTEREST BEARING LOAN AND BORROWINGS (CURRENT)

Consolidated Parent
30 June 30 June 30 June

2009 2009 2008
Loan from related party (a) 327,338 - -
Loan from related party (b) 186,404 - -
Loan from related party (c) 4,623,848 - -
Loan from related party (d) 909,060 - -
Loan from related party (e) 267,822 - -
Loan from related party (f) 99,990 99,990 -

6,414,462 99,990 -

(a) Represents an unsecured interest-free loan from Mr. Husinsjah (President-Director) of PTNM.
(b) Represents an unsecured interest-free loan from Dr. Andrews (Director) of PTNM.
(c) Represents an unsecured interest-free loan from Singapore Mining Venture, a company controlled by Dr.

Andrews.

(d) Represents an unsecured interest-free loan from Icon. Messrs Phillips and Morris are directors of Icon and Dr.

Andrews is the General Manager.

(e) Represents an unsecured interest-free loan from PT. Promincon Indonesia, a company controlled by Dr. Andrews

and Mr. Phillips.

(f) Represents an unsecured interest-free loan from Mr. Phillips that is now classified as current.

None of the abovementioned loans are repayable on demand.
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21. NON-INTEREST BEARING LOAN AND BORROWINGS (NON-CURRENT)

Consolidated Parent
30 June 30 June 30 June
2009 2009 2008
Loan from related party (Refer to Note 20(f)) - - 99,990
- - 99,990
22. PROVISIONS (CURRENT)
Consolidated Parent
30 June 30 June 30 June
2009 2009 2008
$ S s
Provision for annual leave 61,387 61,387 53,127
Provision for stamp duty - - 43,580
61,387 61,387 96.707
23. PROVISIONS (NON CURRENT)
Consolidated Parent
30 June 30 June 30June
2009 2009 2008
S S S
Rehabilitation 345,020 100,000 100,000
Other - employee benefit provision 31,417 - -
376,437 100,000 100,000
Movement in rehabilitation
At 1 July 2008 100,000 100,000 100,000
Acquisition of business 233,837 - -
Unwinding of discount 11,183 - -
At 30 June 2009 345,020 100,000 100,000
Total rehabilitation 345,020 100,000 100,000

The nature of the provisions is described in Note 2 (m) and 2(n).
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24. OTHER PAYABLES (NON-CURRENT)

Consolidated Parent
30 June 30June 30 June
2009 2009 2008
Other payable 77,006 - -
77,006 - -
25. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
Consolidated Parent
2009 2009 2008
$ $ $
Issued Capital during the year:
(a) Ordinary Shares
Issued and fully paid 40,567,560 40,567,560 12,507,946
(b) Movements in ordinary shares on issue
Balance as at 1 July 2008 12,507,946 12,507,946 20
Private placement - 16 January 2009 (i) 970,000 970,000 -
Consideration shares - acquisition of MM Gold Pty Ltd (ii) 8,500,000 8,500,000 -
Private placement - 7 May 2009 (iii) 20,000,000 20,000,000 -
Share issue costs (1,410,386) (1,410,386) (400,074)
Seed capital - - 1,408,000
Share issue in settlement of debt - - 1,250,000
Consideration shares - - 4,000,000
Share issue pursuant to Prospectus - - 6,000,000
Exercise of options - - 250,000
Balance as at 30 June 2009 40,567,560 40,567,560 12,507,946
Consolidated Parent
2009 2009 2008
Number of issued Ordinary Shares during the year: Number Number Number
(a) Ordinary Shares
Issued and fully paid 218,200,000 218,200,000 20
(b) Movements in ordinary shares on issue
Balance as at 1 July 2008 66,050,020 66,050,020 20
Private placement - 16 January 2009 (i) 9,700,000 9,700,000 -
Consideration shares - acquisition of MM Gold Pty Ltd (ii) 42,500,000 42,500,000 -
Private placement - 7 May 2009 (iii) 100,000,000 100,000,000 -
Share issue costs - - -
Seed capital - - 8,800,000
Share issue in settlement of debt - - 6,250,000
Consideration shares - - 20,000,000
Share issue pursuant to Prospectus - - 30,000,000
Exercise of options - - -
- - 1,000,000
Closing number of shares as at 30 June 2009 218,250,020 218,250,020 66,050,020
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On 16 January 2009, 9,700,000 ordinary fully paid shares were allotted at a price of $0.10 each to clients of Kirke
Securities raising a total of $970,000. The shares were issued within the discretionary capacity of the Board
under ASX Listing Rule 7.1 and were issued to investors under Section 708(1) of the Corporations Act. On 21
April 2009 shareholders ratified the issue of these shares.

On 27 February 2009, 42,500,000 ordinary fully paid “consideration shares” were allotted to Icon Enterprises
Limited as consideration for all the shares in MM Gold Pty Ltd which, through its subsidiary, owns 85% of the
Way Linggo Gold Project in Sumatra, Indonesia. These shares were issued under the Share Purchase Agreement
which was approved by shareholders in general meeting on 21 January 2009 and are subject to a 12 month
escrow period from the date of allotment.

Following shareholder approval on 7 May 2009, 100,000,000 ordinary fully paid shares were allotted to clients of
Southern Cross Equities on 14 May 2009 at a price of $0.20 each, for a total consideration of $20,000,000. Fees
of $1,000,000 were paid to Southern Cross Equities for their services in raising the funds plus issued with
1,500,000 unlisted options exercisable on or before 14 May 2014 at an exercise price of $0.26. The options were
allotted within the discretionary capacity of the Board under ASX Listing Rule 7.1.

(c) Terms and Conditions of contributed equity

Holders of ordinary shares have the right to receive dividends as declared and, in the event of winding up of the
Company, to participate in the proceeds from the sale of all surplus assets in proportion to the number of, and
amounts paid up on shares held. Ordinary shares entitle the holder to one vote, either in person or by proxy, at a
meeting of the Company.

Effective 1 July 1998 the Corporations legislation in place abolished the concepts of authorised capital and par share
values. Accordingly, the Company does not have authorised capital or par value in respect of its issued shares.

(d)

Escrow restrictions

Escrow restrictions on securities in the Company are as follows:
In respect of:

e 22,300,000 ordinary shares, 24 months from 7 December 2007.

e 5,000,000 options over ordinary shares, 24 months from 7 December 2007.
e 11,000,000 convertible notes, 30 months from 7 December 2007.

e 42,500,000 ordinary shares, 12 months from 27 February 2009.

(e) Options on issue
Unissued ordinary shares of the Company at 30 June 2009:
No. Listed No. Unlisted Exercise Price Expiry Date
ESOP Non-ESOP
38,525,010 (i) $0.20 31 Dec 2012
5,500,000 (ii) $0.25 31 Dec 2012
1,000,000 (iii) $0.10 04 Dec 2013
2,250,000 (iii) $0.14 18 Feb 2014
2,000,000 (iii) $0.14 09 Apr 2014
2,000,000 (iv) $0.20 16 Apr 2014
1,500,000 (v) $0.26 14 May 2014
1,500,000 (vi) $0.39 13 Jul 2014
1,000,000 (iii) $0.48 28 Jul 2014
The above options are exercisable on or before the expiry date.
(i) Options issued pursuant to a Non Renounceable Rights Issue on the basis of one option for every two
ordinary shares held at the date of entitlement.
(ii) Options issued to Directors and the Company Secretary prior to the Company’s listing on the ASX and are

subject to escrow restrictions imposed by the ASX.
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(iii) Options issued to employees under the Company’s Employee Option Plan which was approved by
shareholders on 6 May 2008.

(iv) Options issued to a consultant within the discretionary capacity of the Board under ASX Listing Rule 7.1.

(v) Options issued to Southern Cross Equities as part fees for their services in raising $20,000,000. The options
were issued within the discretionary capacity of the Board under ASX Listing Rule 7.1.

(vi) Options issued to two consultants within the discretionary capacity of the Board under ASX Listing Rule 7.1.

(f) Capital Management

The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and
to sustain future developments of the business. Capital, in this context, consists of debt, which includes interest
bearing loans and borrowings, cash and cash equivalents and equity.

The Board’s focus has been to raise sufficient funds through equity to fund exploration and evaluation activities.
There were no changes in the consolidated entity’s approach to capital management during the year. Neither the

Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The table below summarises the components of capital managed by the Group.

Consolidated Parent
30June 30June 30 June
2009 2009 2008
s $ s

Total borrowings* 7,874,231 1,018,720 1,111,355
Less cash and cash equivalents (15,607,040) (15,494,229) (3,140,620)
Net debt (7,732,809) (14,475,509) (2,029,264)
Total equity 25,198,043 25,198,043 3,628,497
Total capital 17,465,234 10,722,534 1,599,233
Gearing ratio 31% 4% 31%

*Includes trade and other payables, interest bearing loans and borrowings, and non-interest bearing loans and
borrowings.

The Group’s gearing ratio is monitored and maintained at a level that is appropriate for its growth plans, taking into
account the fact that a significant component of Group liabilities (56,320,000 outstanding at 30 June 2009) were part
of the business acquisition of the Way Linggo Gold Project and are payable from surplus operating cash-flows
generated once the project is in operation in accordance with various acquisition related agreements. A specific
maximum target gearing ratio has not been set by the Board.
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26. RESERVES

Consolidated Parent
2009 2009 2008
$ $ $

Option premium reserve (a):
At 1 July 2008 442,167 442,167 442,167
Issued during the year 1,236,783 1,236,783 -
Proceeds from issue of options 10,675 10,675
At 30 June 2009 1,689,625 1,689,625 442,167
Convertible note reserve (b):
At 1 July 2008 2,041,440 2,041,440 2,041,440
Issued during the year - - -
At 30 June 2009 2,041,440 2,041,440 2,041,440
Foreign currency translation reserve (c):
At 1 July 2008 - - -
Recorded during the year (2,175,164) - -
At 30 June 2009 (2,175,164) - -

1,555,901 3,731,065 2,483,607

Nature and purpose:

(a) Option premium reserve

The option premium reserve is used to record the value of options provided to shareholders, employees including key
management personnel. It is also used to record the value of share based payments provided to employees including
key management personnel as part of their remuneration.

Details of issue Number of options  Fair value per Value
option
$
At 30 June 2008: 36,525,010 442,167
Directors and Key Management Personnel
Issued to Director 1,000,000 $0.065 64,600
Issued to Director 2,000,000 $0.071 141,200
Issued to Joint Company Secretary 250,000 $0.093 23,357
3,250,000 229,157
1:2 Non Renounceable Rights Issue
(i) Balance of shortfall (1:2 Rights Issue) 2,000,000 $0.005 10,675
Other
Issued under Employee Share Option Plan 2,000,000 $0.118 235,402
Issued to Consultant under 15% Rule 2,000,000 $0.181 361,856
Issued to Southern Cross Equities under 15% Rule 1,500,000 $0.274 410,368
5,500,000 1,007,626
At 30 June 2009: 47,275,010 1,689,625
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(b) Convertible note reserve
The convertible note reserve is used to record the equity portion of the Convertible Note.

This reserve represents the equity component of 11,000,000 convertible notes on issue (2008: 11,000,000). Each note
has a face value of $0.20. Interest of 6% per annum is payable annually in arrears. The Convertible Notes may be
converted into shares on or before the Redemption Date in minimum parcels of 5,000 convertible notes. The notes
may be converted to shares at 20 cents per share. The Convertible Notes may be redeemed at 20 cents per share
unless converted on or before the redemption date. The Convertible Notes were issued in December 2007 and the
Redemption Date is 30 June 2010. The Company may at its absolute discretion cause the moneys payable to the note
holder to be converted into shares at the redemption date rather than being redeemed.

(c) Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign subsidiaries.

27. ACCUMULATED LOSSES

Consolidated Parent
2009 2009 2008
$ $ $
At July 12008 (11,363,056) (11,363,056) -
Net (loss) in current period (5,562,362) (7,737,526) (11,363,056)
At 30 June 2009 (16,925,418) (19,100,582) (11,363,056)

28. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 10 September 2008, the Company entered into a Share Purchase Agreement for the acquisition of the shares in
MMG Pty Ltd (MMG), a Company incorporated in Australia, with Icon Enterprises Limited (lcon) and its shareholders,
including Messrs Morris, Phillips and Andrews, who are also directors of Kingsrose. Due to changing economic
conditions, the agreement was subsequently varied on 26 November 2008 (as varied, the Share Purchase Agreement).

The Share Purchase Agreement provided for:

= the acquisition by the Company from Icon of 221 issued fully paid shares of A$0.01 each in the capital of MMG
which represents all of the total shares issued by MMG; and

= the allotment by the Company to Icon of an aggregate of 42,500,000 fully paid shares in the Company.

The fair value of shares issued was determined by reference to the closing price quoted on the Australian Stock
Exchange on 27 February 2009. This price was $0.20 per ordinary share.

Following shareholder approval on 21 January 2009 and completion of all conditions precedent on 27 February 2009
the Company acquired 100% of the voting shares in MMG, from its parent Company, Icon. MMG holds all of the
shares in Natarang Offshore Pty Ltd (NOPL), a Company incorporated in Australia. NOPL holds 85% of the shares in PT
Natarang Mining (PTNM), a Company incorporated in Indonesia that is owner and operator of the Way Linggo Gold
Project. Thus, by acquiring all of the shares in MMG, the Company has acquired an 85% interest in the Project. The
remaining 15% is held by an Indonesian national.

The Project is being undertaken by PTNM pursuant to a Contract of Work dated 2 December 1986 between the
Republic of Indonesia and PTNM (Contract of Work or COW).
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The COW provides that:

e by 31 December 2010 at least 15% of PTNN'’s shares must be offered to the Indonesian Government
or Indonesian national. This has been met as 15% of PTNM is owned by an Indonesian national at 30
June 2009;

e by 31 December 2011 at least 23% must be offered;

e by 31 December 2012 at least 30% must be offered;

e by 31 December 2013 at least 37% must be offered;

e by 31 December 2014 at least 44% must be offered; and

e by 31 December 2015 at least 51% must be offered.

The COW further provides that the consideration to be received by PTNM at each offer date will be determined at an
amount that approximates the then fair value.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquiree as at the dates of acquisition are:

2009 2009 2008 2008
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
S S S S
Property, plant and equipment 2,065,212 2,065,212 1,291,656 1,291,656
Mine development 16,133,335 16,100,708 3,254,546 3,254,546
Cash and cash equivalents 45,396 45,396 356,079 356,079
Trade and other receivables 171,107 171,107 47,847 47,847
Inventories 451,564 451,564 322,019 322,019
Other 330 330 - -
18,866,944 18,834,317 5,272,147 5,272,147
Trade and other current payables 1,009,937 1,009,937 4,404,981 4,404,981
Other non-current payables 7,827,808 7,827,808 - -
Provisions 373,915 373,915 100,000 100,000
Hire purchase liabilities - - 201,721 201,721
9,211,660 9,211,660 4,706,702 4,706,702
Fair value of identifiable net assets 9,622,657 565,445
Minority Interest - -
KRM share of fair value of the identifiable net 9,622,657 565,445
assets
Cost of the combination:
Issue of shares at fair value 8,500,000 4,000,000
Direct costs relating to the acquisition 1,122,657 43,579
Total cost of the combination 9,622,657 4,043,579
Net cash inflow on acquisition:
Cash acquired 45,396 356,079

The amount of PTNM'’s loss included in the Group’s profit or loss for the period since the acquisition date was
$1,778,944. No revenue was recorded. It is impracticable to state the loss for the Group had PTNM been acquired at
1 July 2008.

In the previous period Kingsrose acquired 100% of the joint venture assets of the Kingsrose Unit Trust (KUT) by way of
a Deed. The Company issued 20,000,000 ordinary shares with a fair value of $0.20 each, based on the initial public
offering price at the date of exchange.

On 7 December 2007, for accounting purposes, Kingsrose Mining Limited acquired 100% of the joint venture assets of
the Kingsrose Unit Trust by way of a Deed.
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The Company issued 20,000,000 ordinary shares with a fair value of $0.20 each, based on the initial public offering
price at the date of exchange.

The goodwill arising on acquisition of $3,478,134 was written off in the previous financial year as the Directors believe
it was fully impaired.

Minority Interest

Refer to Note 35 to for information on the treatment of the 15% minority interest shareholding in PT Natarang,
operator of the Group’s Way Linggo Gold Project in Indonesia.

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Prior to listing, 5,500,000 unlisted options were issued to three Directors and an employee as part of their
remuneration. These options have an exercise price of $0.25 and an expiry date of 31 December 2012.

During the year the Company issued the following unlisted options over fully paid shares.

e On 4 December 2008, 1,000,000 unlisted options were issued to an employee under the Company’s Employee
Share Option Plan. These options are exercisable on or before 4 December 2013 at an exercise price of $0.10
each.

e On 16 February 2009, 2,250,000 unlisted options were issued to employees under the Company’s Employee Share
Option Plan. These options are exercisable on or before 16 February 2014 at an exercise price of $0.14 each.

e On 6 April 2009, 2,000,000 unlisted options were issued to an employee under the Company’s Employee Share
Option Plan. These options are exercisable on or before 6 April 2014 at an exercise price of $0.14 each.

e On 16 April 2009, 2,000,000 unlisted options were issued to a consultant and are exercisable on or before 16 April
2014 at an exercise price of $0.20 each. The options were allotted within the discretionary capacity of the Board
under ASX Listing Rule 7.1.

e As part of the fees paid to Southern Cross Equities for their services in raising the abovementioned $20,000,000,
the Company issued 1,500,000 unlisted options. These options are exercisable on or before 14 May 2014 at an
exercise price of $0.26 each. The options were allotted within the discretionary capacity of the Board under ASX
Listing Rule 7.1.

In accordance with AASB2 ‘Share-based Payments’ the Company has charged the relative costs of share-based
payments to the income statement.
(a) Recognised share-based payment expense

The expense recognised for employee services receiving during the year is shown in the table
below

Consolidated Parent
2009 2009 2008
Cost of shares recognised as share-based payment - - 1,345,000
Cost of options recognised as share-based payment 1,236,783 1,236,783 259,800
Total expense arising from share-based payment 1,236,783 1,236,783 1,604,800
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(i) Unlisted options issued to directors and key management personnel were issued prior to the Company’s
listing on the ASX

The terms of these options are described below:

Each Option entitles the holder to one (1) Share.

The Options are exercisable at any time prior to 5.00pm WST on 31 December 2012 (the Expiry Date).
The exercise price of the Options is twenty (25) cents per Option.

The Options are freely transferable.

There will be no participating rights or entitlements inherent in the Options and the holders will not be entitled to
participate in new issues of capital which may be offered to Shareholders during the currency of the Options.
However, the Company will ensure that for the purposes of determining entitlements to any such issue, the record
date will be at least seven (7) business days after the issue is announced. This will give Option holders the opportunity
(where available) to exercise their Options prior to the date for determining entitlements to participate in any such
issue.

(i) Unlisted options issued to a director and key management personnel were issued under the Company’s
ESOP which was approved by shareholders on 6 May 2008

The Company has a share-based payment Employee Share Option Scheme (“ESOP”) which was approved by
shareholders in general meeting in May 2008. There have been no cancellations or modifications to the ESOP during
2009. During the year 2,250,000 options were allotted under the ESOP: 2,000,000 to a Director and 250,000 to key
management personnel.

The terms of the options issued under the ESOP are described below:

Expiry Date - The Option will expire at 5.00 pm Western Standard Time on a date five years after the date of issue
(“Expiry Date”).

Exercise Price - Unless otherwise determined by the Board pursuant to clause 6 of the ESOP, the Exercise Price of each
Option will be the Market Value of a Share when the Board resolves to offer the Options. Market Value means the
weighted average closing sale price of the Shares recorded on the ASX over the last 5 trading days on which sales of
the Shares were recorded preceding the day on which the Board resolves to invite an Application for an Option plus a
10% premium.

Unlisted Options - The Option will not be listed for quotation on the ASX or any other stock exchange. The Options
will only be transferrable to the extent permitted by the Scheme.

Exercise of Options - If any Performance Criteria are imposed on a Holder, that Holder may only exercise their Options
upon satisfaction of the Performance Criteria and prior to the Expiry Date.
Notwithstanding paragraph (a) above, all Options may be exercised:

. during a Takeover Period; or
. in the Board's absolute discretion, in the event of the death or Permanent Disablement of an Eligible Employee.

Allotment of Shares - All Shares allotted upon the exercise of Options will be of the same class and rank equally in all
respects with other Shares in the Company.

Reconstruction of capital - In the event that, prior to the expiry of any Options, there is a reconstruction (including
consolidation, subdivision, reduction, return or pro-rata cancellation) of the issued capital of the Company, then the
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number of Options to which each Holder is entitled or the Exercise Price or both will be reconstructed in the manner
required by the Listing Rules.

No Rights of Participation - There are no participating rights or entitlements inherent in the Options and the holders
will not be entitled to participate in new issues of capital which may be offered to Shareholders during the currency of
the Options.

If there is a bonus issue (Bonus Issue) to Shareholders, the number of Shares over which an Option is exercisable will
be increased by the number of Shares which the holder would have received if the Option had been exercised before
the record date for the Bonus Issue (Bonus Shares). The Bonus Shares must be paid up by the Company out of profits
or reserves (as the case may be) in the same manner as was applied in the Bonus Issue, and upon issue will rank
equally in all respects with the other Shares on issue as at the date of issue of the Bonus Shares.

In the event of any reconstruction (including consolidation, sub-division, reduction or return) of the issued capital of
the Company prior to the Expiry Date, all rights of an Option holder are to be changed in a manner consistent with the

Listing Rules.

In the event that the Company makes a pro rata issue of securities, the exercise price of the Options will be adjusted
in accordance with the formula set out in Listing Rule 6.22.2.

(iii) Unlisted options issued to Southern Cross Equities

The options issued to Southern Cross Equities represent transaction costs on capital raised (refer to Note 25(e) (iv).
The terms of these options are described below:

Each Option entitles the holder to one (1) Share.

The Options are exercisable at any time prior to 5.00pm WST on 14 May 2014 (the Expiry Date).

The exercise price of the Options is twenty six ($0.26) cents per Option.

The Options are freely transferable.

The Company will provide to each Option holder a notice that is to be completed when exercising the Options (Notice
of Exercise). The Options may be exercised wholly or in part by completing the Notice of Exercise and delivering it
together with payment to the secretary of the Company to be received any time prior to the Expiry Date. The

Company will process all relevant documents received at the end of every calendar month.

Upon the exercise of an Option and receipt of all relevant documents and payment, the holder will be allotted and
issued a Share ranking pari passu with the then issued Shares.

There will be no participating rights or entitlements inherent in the Options and the holders will not be entitled to
participate in new issues of capital which may be offered to Shareholders during the currency of the Options.
However, the Company will ensure that for the purposes of determining entitlements to any such issue, the record
date will be at least seven (7) business days after the issue is announced. This will give Option holders the opportunity
(where available) to exercise their Options prior to the date for determining entitlements to participate in any such
issue.

(iv) Unlisted options issued to a consultant

The terms of these options are described below:

Each Option entitles the holder to one (1) Share.

The Options are exercisable at any time prior to 5.00pm WST on 16 April 2014 (the Expiry Date).
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The exercise price of the Options is twenty ($0.20) cents per Option.

The Options are freely transferable.

The Company will provide to each Option holder a notice that is to be completed when exercising the Options (Notice
of Exercise). The Options may be exercised wholly or in part by completing the Notice of Exercise and delivering it
together with payment to the secretary of the Company to be received any time prior to the Expiry Date. The
Company will process all relevant documents received at the end of every calendar month.

Upon the exercise of an Option and receipt of all relevant documents and payment, the holder will be allotted and
issued a Share ranking pari passu with the then issued Shares.

There will be no participating rights or entitlements inherent in the Options and the holders will not be entitled to
participate in new issues of capital which may be offered to Shareholders during the currency of the Options.
However, the Company will ensure that for the purposes of determining entitlements to any such issue, the record
date will be at least seven (7) business days after the issue is announced. This will give Option holders the opportunity
(where available) to exercise their Options prior to the date for determining entitlements to participate in any such

issue.

b) Summary of options granted during the year

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise price (WAEP) of, and movements in, share
options issued.

2009 2009 2008 2008

Number WAEP Number WAEP
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 5,500,000 0.25 - -
Granted during the year 8,750,000 0.17 6,500,000 0.25
Exercised during the year - - (1,000,000) 0.25
Lapsed/cancelled during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the year end 14,250,000 0.20 5,500,000 0.25
Exercisable at the year end 14,250,000 0.20 5,500,000 0.25

The outstanding balance as at 30 June 2009 is represented by:

(i) 5,500,000 options over ordinary shares with an exercise price of $0.25, exercisable on or before 31 December 2012.

(i) 1,000,000 options over ordinary shares with an exercise price of $0.10, exercisable on or before 4 December 2013.

(iii) 2,250,000 options over ordinary shares with an exercise price of $0.14, exercisable on or before 18 February 2014.

(iv) 2,000,000 options over ordinary shares with an exercise price of $0.14, exercisable on or before 9 April 2014.
1,000,000 of these options are subject to certain Performance Criteria and have an exercise price of $0.14,
exercisable on or before 9 April 2014.

(v) 2,000,000 options over ordinary shares with an exercise price of $0.20, exercisable on or before 16 April 2014.

(vi) 1,500,000 options over ordinary shares with an exercise price of $0.26, exercisable on or before 14 May 2014.
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The outstanding balance as at 30 June 2009 is represented by the following table:

Number of options

Options at end of period
Grant Issue Vesting Expiry Exercise price  Options granted Lapsed/ Options On issue Vested
date date date date cancelled exercised
Directors
3-Oct-07 3-Oct-07 3-Oct-07 3-Dec-12 $0.25 5,500,000 - - 5,500,000 5,500,000
4-Dec-08 4-Dec-08 4-Dec-08 4-Dec-13 $0.10 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 1,000,000
16-Feb-09 18-Feb-09 18-Feb-09 18-Feb-14 $0.14 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 2,000,000
Employees
16-Feb-09 18-Feb-09 18-Feb-09 18-Feb-14 $0.14 250,000 - - 250,000 250,000
16-Feb-09 9-Apr-09 9-Apr-09 9-Apr-14 $0.14 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 *1,000,000
Consultants
6-Apr-09 16-Apr-09 16-Apr-09 16-Apr-14 $0.20 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 2,000,000
Other - Southern Cross Equities
7-May-09 14-May-09 14-May-09 14-May-14 $0.26 1,500,000 - - 1.500.000 1,500,000
14,250,000 - - 14,250,000 13,250,000

*subject to Performance Criteria

Weighted average remaining contractual life — The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at 30 June 2009 is 4.1 years. (2008: 4.5 years).
Range of exercise price — The range of exercise prices for ESOP options outstanding at the end of the year was $0.10 to $0.26. (2008: $0.25 only).
Weighted average fair value — The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was $0.16. (2008: $0.05).

Option pricing model — The fair value of equity share options granted is estimated at the date agreement was reached to grant the options using a Black & Scholes based model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options are granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used for the year ended 30 June 2009:
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Granted Granted Granted Granted
7 May 2009 6 April 2009 16 February 2009 4 December 2008

Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Share price at date of grant $0.33 $0.22 $0.14 $0.10
Exercise price $0.26 $0.20 $0.14 $0.10
Volatility 98.20% 121.40% 117.30% 80.00%
Risk free rate 4.41% 4.13% 3.74% 3.69%
Expiration period 5 years 5 years 5 years 5 years
Black & Scholes valuation $0.26 $0.19 $S0.12 $0.06

c) Directors’ and Key Management Personnel options

The terms of the options issued to Directors and Key Management Personnel are described below:

2009 2008

Grant date 18 February 2009 3 October 2007

17 December 2007
Vesting date 18 February 2009 3 October 2007

17 December 2007
Expiry date 18 February 2014 31 December 2012

31 December 2012
Exercise price $0.14 $0.25
Options granted 2,000,000 5,500,000
Options lapsed/cancelled - -
Options exercised - 1,000,000
Number of options at end of period — on issue 7,500,000 5,500,000
Number of options at end of period — vested 7,500,000 5,500,000
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Leasing Commitments

Operating lease commitments — Company as lessee

The Company has entered into commercial leases for property rental. These leases have an average life of between one

and two years with renewal options included in the contracts.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 (cont’d)

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 30 June 2009 are as follows:

Consolidated Parent
30 June 30 June 30 June
2009 2009 2008
S S S
Operating lease commitments — Company as lessee
Within one year 73,236 57,365 59,064
After one vear but not more than five years 82,439 63,250 59,064
After more than five years - - -
Total minimum lease payments 155,675 120,615 118,128
30 June 30 June 30 June
2009 2009 2008
$ $ $
Finance lease commitments — Company as lessee
Within one year - - 99,019
After one year but not more than five years - - -
Total minimum lease payments - - 99,019
Less amounts representing finance charges - - (5,921)
Present value of minimum lease payments - - 93,098

There are no other significant commitments and contingencies at balance date that require disclosure.
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31. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The auditor of Kingsrose Mining Limited is Ernst & Young.

Consolidated Parent
2009 2009 2008
$ $ $
Amounts received or due and receivable by Ernst &
Young (Australia) for:
(i) An audit or review of the financial report of the entity
and any other entity in the consolidated group.
164,474 164,474 112,670

(ii) Other services in relation to the entity and any other
entity in the consolidated group — acquisition due
diligence 28,698 28,698 99,548
(iii) Tax compliance 12,800 12,800 -
Total auditor remuneration 205,972 205,972 212,218
Amounts received or due and receivable by related
practices of Ernst & Young (Australia) for:
(i) An audit or review of the financial report of the entity
and any other entity in the consolidated group.

19,944 - -
Total auditor remuneration 19,944 - -
Amounts received or due and receivable by non Ernst &
Young audit firms for:
(i) An audit or review of the financial report of the entity
and any other entity in the consolidated group.

16,943 16,943 -
Total auditor remuneration 16,943 16,943 -
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(a) Details of Key Management Personnel

Directors
J.C. Morris
D.F. Hatch
D.W. Franks
J.W. Phillips

M.J. Andrews
T.G. Spencer

Key Management Personnel

H. Husinsjah
M. Green

Name

Position

Non-Executive Chairman
Managing Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director
Finance Director

President Director (PTNM)
Operations Manager

Date of
appointment

17-Aug-07
22-Oct-07

4-Feb-08
12-Jan-05

9-Aug-07

28-Mar-09

9-Apr-99
1-Feb-05

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 (cont’d)

Date of
resignation

27-Feb-09
28-Mar-09

There are no changes to key management personnel after reporting date and as at the date of this report.

(b) Compensation of Key Management Personnel

Short-term employee benefits
Post employment benefits

Share-based payments

Consolidated Parent
2009 2009 2008
$ $ $
702,684 605,885 518,211
340,363 340,363 -
168,846 168,846 307,800
1,211,893 1,115,094 826,011
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Balance at Granted as Net change Options Balance atend Notvested Vested and
beginning of remuneration other exercised of period and not exercisable
period exercisable
1-Jul (+)(+) 30-Jun
2008 2009
30-Jun-09
J.C. Morris 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
D. F. Hatch (i) 4,500,000 - (4,500,000) - - - -
D. W. Franks (ii) 500,000 1,000,000 (1,500,000) - - - -
T. G. Spencer(iii) - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
J.W. Phillips 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
M.J. Andrews 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
Ir. Herryansjah - - - - - - -
M. Green 100,000 - - - 100,000 - 100,000
10,600,000 3,000,000 (6,000,000) - 7,600,000 - 7,600,000
Balance at Granted as Net change Options Balance at end Not vested and Vested and
beginning of  remuneration other exercised of period not exercisable  exercisable
period
1-Jul (+) 30-Jun-08
2007
30-Jun-08
D.F. Hatch - 3,000,000 1,500,000 - 4,500,000 - 4,500,000
J.C. Morris - 1,000,000 500,000 - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
D.W. Franks - 1,000,000 500,000 (1,000,000) 500,000 - 500,000
J.W. Phillips - - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
M.J. Andrews - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
M. Green - - 100,000 - 100,000 - 100,000
- 6,000,000 5,600,000 (1,000,000) 10,600,000 - 10,600,000

(i) D Hatch - Resigned — 27 February 2009
(ii) D. Franks — Resigned — 28 March 2009
(iii) T. Spencer - Appointed — 28 March 2009

(+) These represent listed options issued pursuant to a rights issue of shares.
(++) These represent change by virtue of resignation before year end.

All options are exercisable as soon as they are vested.
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(d) Ordinary shares held in Kingsrose Mining Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 (cont’d)

Balance On exercise of Balance
. K Net change other
held at remuneration options held at
30-Jun-09 1 July 2008 30 June 2009
Directors
J.C. Morris 1,000,000 - 4,500,000* 5,500,000
D. Hatch (i) 3,000,000 - (3,000,000) -
D. Franks (ii) 1,000,000 - (1,000,000) -
T. Spencer (iii) - - - -
J.W. Phillips - - 16,150,000* 16,150,000
M.J. Andrews - - 16,150,000* 16,150,000
Executives
M. Green - - - -
5,000,000 - 32,800,000 37,800,000
Balance On exercise of Net change other Balance
held at remuneration options held at
30-Jun-08 1 July 2007 30 June 2008
Directors
D.H. Hatch - - 3,000,000 3,000,000
J.C. Morris - - 1,000,000 1,000,000
D. Franks - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
J.W. Phillips - - - -
M.J. Andrews - - - -
Executives
M. Green - - - -
- 1,000,000 4,000,000 5,000,000

Held in escrow until 27 February 2010.
These shares were issued pursuant to the Share Purchase Agreement which provided for:
] the acquisition by the Company from Icon of 221 issued fully paid shares of A$0.01 each in the capital of MMG,
which represented all of the total shares issued by MMG; and
= the allotment by the Company to Icon of an aggregate of 42,500,000 fully paid shares in the Company. Messrs
Morris, Phillips and Andrews were shareholders of Icon, with ownership being beneficially or non-beneficially

held.

(i) D Hatch - Resigned 27 February 2009
(ii) D. Franks — Resigned 28 March 2009

(iii) T. Spencer - Appointed 28 March 2009
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33.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(c)

(d)

(e) Loans from Key Management Personnel

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 (cont’d)

Balance at Interest Interest Balance Number
beginning of Loans Charged not Write-offs at end of in
period charged period group
Total
$ $ $ $ $ $
2009 99,990 6,314,472 - 6,414,462 6
2008 99,990 - 99,990 1

Terms and conditions of loan

The $99,990 loan from the Director (J.W. Phillips) was unsecured and interest free. This loan was repaid in full

after year end.

The loans incurred during the period for $6,314,472 represent unsecured and interest-free loans from directors
of the company, and/or from companies where they hold a directorship. Refer to Note 20.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Ultimate parent
Kingsrose Mining Limited is an Australian Company which has two Australian subsidiary companies and one
Indonesian subsidiary company as at balance date.

Indonesian subsidiary and minority interest
The Company owns 85% of the Indonesian subsidiary, PTNM, a company in which Mr. Herryansjah Husinsjah
Is a director and is also the holder of the remaining 15% shareholding in PTNM.

Key management personnel
Details of transactions with Key Management Personnel are disclosed in Note 32.

Kalgoorlie Office Lease and Workshop

An arms-length arrangement exists whereby the Company leases the Kalgoorlie office and workshop from
Messrs Michael Green and Darren Phillips. Mr Phillips is considered a related party as he is the son of
Director, Mr. J.W. Phillips. In view of this, Kingsrose procured an independent valuation from a real estate
Company which valued the rental thereby deeming that the arrangement was indeed arms length. An
amount of $30,000, plus outgoings is paid annually to Messrs Green and Phillips. At 30 June 2009 SNil was
owing to Messrs Green and Phillips (2008: Nil). The rental agreement expires on 1 June 2010 at which time
the current arrangement may be extended by mutual agreement.

Mining Services Agreement — Westralmen Pty Ltd

In September 2007, the Company entered into a Mining Services Agreement with Westralmen Pty Ltd, a
Company in which Mr. D Phillips is associated. Westralmen Pty Ltd is considered a related party. Westralmen
Pty Ltd performs mining services for the Company. The initial term of the contract was for a period of two
years and has been extended by mutual agreement for an indefinite period of time at the same rate.

In consideration of Westralmen Pty Ltd performing the mining services, the Company paid Westralmen Pty
Ltd a fee of $418,000 per annum inclusive of GST in equal instalments monthly in arrears until 30 August
2009 and subsequent to the recent extension, the fee will remain unchanged. Westralmen Pty Ltd is solely
responsible for all taxes incurred or payable in respect of the services fee received from the Company.

Page 96



Kingsrose Mining Limited Annual Report
Year ended 30 June 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 (cont’d)

The services that Westralmen Pty Ltd provides to the Company includes managing all aspects of the conduct
of mining operations on the joint venture tenements, preparing and submitting expenditure proposals and
work programs, maintaining all mining equipment, reporting to the Company in respect of the progress of the
services and preparing and submitting any reports relating to the mining services as the Company requires.

Under the terms of the agreement, the Company effects and maintains all insurances required by all
applicable laws in respect of the mining services.

At 30 June 2009 $34,833 was owing to Westralmen Pty Ltd. (2008: $35,200)
(e) Loan from Directors

(i) Mr. J.W. Phillips made a loan to the Company in the amount of $99,990. The loan was interest free.
Subsequent to year end, the loan has been repaid in full.

(ii) As part of the Way Linggo Gold project acquisition, a loan of $4,623,847 from Singapore Mining
Ventures Pte Ltd (“SMV”) to PTNM was documented in a Loan Arrangements Deed. This Deed
provided that on repayment of the above-mentioned sum, $1,000,000 is to be repaid by SMV to
Goldcrest Pty Ltd, a company controlled by Mr. Morris and $2,626,940 to be paid to Icon. At the date
of this report the SMV loan was interest-free and is required to be paid by PTNM from surplus
operating cash-flow.

(iii) A $186,405 loan from Dr. Andrews was detailed in the same Deed and on the same terms noted
above.

(iv) A $909,060 loan from Icon was detailed in the same Deed and on the same terms noted above.

(v) A $267,822 loan from Pt Promincon, a company controlled by Mssrs. Andrews and Phillips was
detailed in the same Deed and on the same terms noted above.

(f) Loan from Mr Herrryansjah Husinsjah
A $327,338 loan from Mr. Herryansjah was detailed in the same Deed and on the same terms noted
above.

Refer to Note 21 for additional information.

34. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

e On 13 July 2009 the Company allotted 1,500,000 unlisted options to two consultants at an exercise price of
$0.39 each, exercisable on or before 13 July 2014. The options were allotted within the discretionary
capacity of the Board under ASX Listing Rule 7.1.

e On 28 July 2009 the Company’s subsidiary, PT Natarang Mining, entered into a contract with Mr. Alec
Sharland to assume the position of Project Manager for the Way Linggo gold project. He commenced work
on 7 September 2009. As a result of this appointment he was allotted 1,000,000 unlisted options under the
Company’s Employee Stock Option Plan to a senior employee at an exercise price of $0.48, exercisable on or
before 28 July 2014.

e On 12 August 2009 1,000,000 options were exercised under the Company’s Employee Share Option Plan. The
options were exercised at a price of $0.10 each.
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35. MINORITY INTEREST

The equity balance of PT Natarang, the operating company for the Way Linggo Gold Project, was negative (i.e. a debit
balance) at the time of the acquisition in February 2009 and again at 30 June 2009 due to accumulated losses
exceeding issued capital and reserves. Under Australian accounting standards, it is not appropriate to recognise
negative Minority Interest balances in the Balance Sheet or Income Statement of the consolidated Group.

The following table summarises the Minority Interest (debit) balances recognised at date of acquisition (February
2009) and as at 30 June 2009:

Minority Interest in: 30-Jun-09 28-Feb-09
Issued share capital 92,433 116,913

Retained profit/(loss) (92,433) (116,913)

36. CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Entity Place of Percentage Holding
Incorporation 2009 2008
Kingsrose Mining Ltd

MM Gold Pty Ltd Australia (WA) 100% 0%
Natarang Offshore Pty Ltd Australia (WA) 100% 0%
PT Natarang Mining Indonesia (JAK) 85% 0%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 (cont’d)

37. RECONCILIATION OF CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Consolidated Parent
2009 2009 2008

Reconciliation of net (loss)/profit after income tax
to net cash flows used in operating activities. $ S S
Net (loss) after income tax (5,562,362) (7,737,526) (11,363,056)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 151,195 143,668 96,066
Unrealised foreign exchange loss 1,489,205 - -
Share based payments 826,397 827,567 1,604,800
Impairment of goodwill on acquisition - - 3,487,134
Impairment of mine properties and development and plant - - 4,386,941
Accrued interest - (79,290) (2,042)
Inventory write-down to net realisable value - - 325,279
Convertible notes option interest 14,500 14,500 147,415
Loss on sale of vehicle 4,896 4,896 -
Impairment loss on investment in subsidiary - 359,120 -
Impairment loss on loan to subsidiary - 3,674,280 -
Change in assets and liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in receivables (326,955) (79,347) (29,378)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments - - (58,321)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable (100,391) 106,961 (266,730)
(Increase)/decrease in stock 84,196 (88,804) (529,308)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions (35,320) (33,382) 96,707
Net cash used in operating activities (3,454,639) (2,887,357) (2,104,493)
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DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of Kingsrose Mining Limited, | state that:
(1) In the opinion of the Directors:
(a) the financial statements, notes and the additional disclosures included in the Directors’ report
designated as audited, of the Company and of the Consolidated Entity are in accordance with the

Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Company's and the consolidated entity’s financial position
as at 30 June 2009 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

(ii) complying with the Accounting Standards and Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when
they become due and payable.

(2) This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the Directors in

accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009.

On behalf of the Board

John C. Morris
Executive Chairman

Perth, 25 September 2009
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Independent auditor's report to the members of Kingsrose Mining Limited

Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Kingsrose Mining Limited, which comprises the
balance sheet as at 30 June 2009 and the income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow
statement for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting policies, other explanatory
notes and the directors’ declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the company and the entities it
controlled at the year’'s end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
report in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations) and the Corporations Act 2001. This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining
internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. In Note 2, the
directors also state that the financial report, comprising the financial statements and notes, complies with
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards and International Standards on Auditing. These
Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit
engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report
is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial report. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we consider internal controls relevant to the entity’'s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit we have met the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001. We
have given to the directors of the company a written Auditor's Independence Declaration, a copy of which
is included in the directors’ report. In addition to our audit of the financial report, we were engaged to
undertake the services disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The provision of these services
has not impaired our independence.

Liability limited by a scheme approved
under Professional Standards Legislation
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Auditor's Opinion

In our opinion:

1. the financial report of Kingsrose Mining Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including:

i giving a true and fair view of the financial position of Kingsrose Mining Limited and the
consolidated entity at 30 June 2009 and of their performance for the year ended on that
date; and

i complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

2. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.

Report on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 22 to 31 of the directors’ report for the year
ended 30 June 2009. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation
of the Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Auditor’s Opinion

In our opinion the Remuneration Report of Kingsrose Mining Limited for the year ended 30 June 2009,
complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

\mmm
Ernst & Young
G H Meyerowitz
Partner

Perth
25 September 2009
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
The following additional information was applicable as at 22 September 2009.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The names of the substantial shareholders and the number of shares to which they are entitled are:

Name Number of Shares Percentage
Icon Enterprises Limited 42,500,000 19.47%

KRM (WA) Pty Ltd as trustee for
the Kingsrose Mining Unit Trust 20,000,000 9.16%

FULLY PAID ORDINARY SHARES
(a) Holders of fully paid ordinary shares are entitled to one vote per fully paid ordinary share.

(b) The number of holders of fully paid ordinary shares is 780.
(c) The number of fully paid ordinary shareholdings held in less than marketable parcels is 5.

(d) The 20 largest fully paid ordinary shareholders together held 68.88% of the securities in this class.

(e) Distribution of fully paid ordinary shareholders:

Category Number of Fully Paid Ordinary
(Size of Holding) Shareholders

1-1,000 10
1,001 - 5,000 79
5,001 - 10,000 168
10,001 - 100,000 372
100,001 and over 151
TOTAL 780

LARGEST FULLY PAID ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS

Ranking  Name Number %
1 Icon Enterprises Pty Limited 42,500,000 19.38
2 Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 21,949,463 10.01
3 KRM (WA) Pty Ltd <The Kingsrose Unit A/C> 20,000,000 9.12
4 Fitel Nominees Limited 10,800,000 4.93
5 HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited 7,977,103 3.64
6 Airedale (Asia) Ltd 6,250,000 2.85
7 Dog Meat Pty Ltd <DM A/C> 5,650,000 2.58
8 Yandall Investments Ltd 4,500,000 2.05
9 Cogent Nominees Pty Ltd <SMP Account> 3,462,707 1.58
10 Bond Street Custodians Limited <CPCPL — TU0022 A/C> 3,250,000 1.48
11 Mr. R. C. Mclllree/Upper Mantle Investments Pty Ltd 3,039,900 1.39
12 Ajava Holdings Pty Ltd 3,000,000 1.37
13 Worldpower Pty Ltd 2,880,000 1.31
14 Nefco Nominees Pty Ltd 2,750,670 1.25
15 All States Secretariat Pty Ltd <Superannuation Fund A/C> 2,500,000 1.14
16 Mr. F.A. Moore 2,500,000 1.14
17 Rosemont Asset Pty Ltd/Mr. S.K. Cato 2,050,000 0.93
18 Matrix Nominees Pty Ltd <D.W. Franks Family A/C> 2,000,000 0.91
19 Lujeta Pty Ltd <Margaret Account> 2,000,000 0.91
20 Zelman Pty Ltd 2,000,000 0.91

151,059,843 68.88
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION (cont’d)

There is a total of 218,250,020 ordinary fully paid ordinary shares on issue, 153,450,020 of which are listed on

the Australian Securities Exchange Limited and 64,800,000 are subject to escrow restrictions.

As of the date of this report the following securities on issue are Restricted Securities:

In respect of

° 22,300,000 ordinary shares, 24 months from 7 December 2007.

. 5,000,000 options over ordinary shares, 24 months from 7 December 2007.
11,000,000 convertible notes, 30 months from 7 December 2007

42,500,000 ordinary shares, 12 months from 27 February 2009.

LISTED OPTIONS

(a) The number of holders of listed options is 305.

(b) The number of option holdings held in less than a marketable parcel is 3.

(c) The 20 largest option holders together held 76.35% of the securities in this class.
(d) Distribution of option holders:

Category Number of

(Size of Holding) Option Holders
1-1,000 3
1,001 - 5,000 114
5,001 - 10,000 20
10,001 - 100,000 127
100,001 and over 41
TOTAL 305

LARGEST LISTED OPTION HOLDERS

Ranking Name Number %

1 Airedale (Asia) Ltd 5,625,000 14.60
2 KRM (WA) Pty Ltd <The Kingsrose Unit Trust> 3,500,000 9.08
3 Prosperity Finance Co Ltd 3,000,000 7.79
4 Mr. R.C. Mclllree/Upper Mantle Investments Pty Ltd 2,129,568 5.52
5 Ajava Holdings Pty Ltd 2,000,000 5.19
6 Colbern Fiduciary Nominees Pty Ltd 2,000,000 5.19
7 Nudd Valley Company Limited 1,810,000 4.70
8 Mr. D.F. Hatch 1,500,000 3.89
9 Pipe Link of Australia Pty Ltd <Super Fund A/C> 1,118,000 2.90
10 Nefco Nominees Pty Ltd 1,025,000 2.66
11 Mr. S.K. Cato 800,000 2.08
12 Mr. G.W. Thomas & Mrs N.L. Thomas <Thomas Family Super) 700,000 1.82
13 Dog Meat Pty Ltd <DM A/C> 625,000 1.62
14 Yandall Investments Pty Ltd 600,000 1.56
15 Mr. F.A. Moore 585,000 1.52
16 Mrs. N.L. Thomas <Thomas Family A/C> 525,000 1.36
17 Goldcrest Corporation Pty Ltd 500,000 1.30
18 Matrix Nominees Pty Ltd <D.W. Franks Family A/C> 500,000 1.30
19 Bond Street Custodians Ltd <CPCPL-TU0022 A/C> 500,000 1.30
20 Mr. M.R. & J.P. Smith <The M&J Super Fund A/C> 375,000 0.97

29,417,568 76.35
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION (cont’d)

There is a total of 38,525,010 listed options on issue, all of which are listed on the Australian Securities
Exchange Limited.

REGISTERED AND PRINCIPAL OFFICE
The address of the registered and principal office in Australia is Suite 3, 16 Kearns Crescent, Applecross,
Western Australia 6153. The telephone number is (61 8) 9316 2711 and the facsimile number is (61 8) 9316 2511.
REGISTERS OF SECURITIES
Held at the following address:
Advanced Share Registry Services

1/150 Stirling Highway
Nedlands, WA 6009

Telephone: (61 8) 9389 8033
Facsimile: (61 8) 9389 7871
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